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Ill UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBlA 

[‘]____‘_‘_________X 

r31lN RE; 
141 
I51 GRAND JURY PROCEEDINGS : 
161 
!71 
[8]-___ _----_--_ ___x 

[91 Grand Jury Room No. 4 
1101 United States Drs’hict Court 
ill1 for the District of Columbia 
1121 3rd & Constitution, N.W. 
I131 Washington, D.C. 20001 
I141 Wednesday Janus 28 1998 

i :zi 
The testimony of LEON%A&TTA was taken in the 

resence of a full 
(171 8 eptember 19 19 I 

uorum of Grand Jury 97-2 
7 commencin at 930 am, 

I181 SOiOMOrj WISENBEjG 

* y$ggd On 

I191 BRUCE L. UDOLF 
[201 MARY ANNE WIRTH 
1211 STEPHEN JAM 
I - - ,  

1221 
1231 
f241 

[251 

ES BINHAK 
Associate Independent Counsel 
1001 Penns lvania Avenue, N.W. 

Suite 498 North 
Washington, D.C. 2@304 
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(11 

[ 4 1 was called as a witness and. having been first duty sworn b 
[ 5 1 the Foreperson of the Grand Jury. was examined and 

I 2 1 Whereupon 

test 

I31 

if& 
( 6 1 as follows: 

LEON PANEl-fA 

I71 EXAMINATION 
(81 BY MR. WISENBERG: 
191 Q Good momino. Could vou state your name for the 

f i 0 i record, please? 
_ 

ill1 A 
Cl 

My name is Leon Panetta. 
And. Mr. Pan&a let me inform you - my name is 

i::iSol Wisenberg. first of all and I’m here with m 
(14 1 from the Office of Independent Counsel, May 

collea ues 
kne &h Steve 

[ 15rBinhak. and Bruce Udolf. who you met out in the hall; is that 
r 16 1 correct? 
I171 A That’s correct. 

And let me start b 

i22l And 1’11 also dsk-jw that when I ask you those 
r23jthings. if you can give us a yes or a no or a maybe - 
1241 

Aa That s fine. [251 - for the record. This is a federal grand jury 
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I141 
1151 

So F yqudrderstand our authority in the matten 

[I61 Q of course, you have the privi 
?? 

against setf- 
t17rincriminati~. frttt understand you are an a orney? 
1181 

Q And you may refuse to answer any question if a 
~:~~truthful answer to the questron would tend to incrrnmate 
r2llyou. 
I-‘?] A I understand. 

Q 
: fii incrimination? 

And you understand the privilege against self- 

I251 A Yes. Ido. 
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Q 
1; used against you by the grand lury or in a subsequent legal 

You understand that anything you do or say ccutd b.e 

-:-proceedm ? 
1. %, Yes, I do. 

‘< Q If you have retained counsel, your counsel does not 
i g. have the right to sit with you in the grand jury room but 
I- the grand ju 
-i:step outside r 

will permit you a reasonable op 
he grand jury room to consult WI h counsel if .P 

ortunity to 

; YOU so desire. Do you understand that? 
r’:. 
;:. -counsel. 

A I understand that. I am not represented by 
,__ ._._ .- 
1:;: 0 Okay. You came here by yourself today, 
1::: A That s correct 

Q 
i il i rules of secrecy covered in Rule 6(e) of the Federal Rules of 

All right. The grand jury is bound by certain 

rii:Criminal Procedure. 

I :i _ myself, m 
As a general matter, with certain exceptions 

[ls:are boun dy 
colleagues. the grand jurors, the court reporter 

by an oath of secrecy. We can’t go out and blab 
t2c 1 what you’ve said here toda 
[2:: A I understan J 

Do you understand? 

Q 
i::‘go out, if you so choose, and tell the world about what you 

You are not bound by that oath of secrecy. You can 

124 jsaid today. You don’t have to, but you can. Do you 
~25:understand that? 
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A I don’t think so. 

Vrgl%?s fair. . 
l4! 

11: 

A I understand. 
15’ Q Just an example of some of the exceptions. ff 
{sithere were to ever be a trial arising out of anythin 

12: 

(71 

131 

,Fi 
rand jury did, and you were to testify differently t 51 

this 
an you 

15: ave here today, that would be an example where your grand 
[ oijury testimony could be revealed. 

110: A I understand. 
0 There are certain categories of witnesses who come 

I:: !before a federal grand jury. known as subjects or targets, 
tl2:and I’m oin to read you thedef&innfrorn.tbeLlS. 
,I(. Attome& h&nual of a tamet. 
il5l .A target is defined 3s a person as to whom the 
[ 16; rosecutor or the grand.jury has substantial evidence linking 
r17! rm or her to the commtssron of a crime. who, in the judgment g. 

’ 

1 I e : of the rosecutor. is a putative defendant.” 
1191 e ou understand that definition? 
1201 A I do. 

Q 
i::iundentand that? 

All right. You are not a target. Do you 

1231 A I do. 
Q A subject is defined as .A person whose conduct is 

i::;within the scope of the grand jury investigation.” Do you 
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I 1 I understandAtha; ~$titiin? 
[21 

Q You are technically under the manual definition - 
i:ibecause that’s such a broad definiiion. you woutd be a 
tslsubject. Do you understand that? 

A I understand. 

il81 - - A Ido. 
1191 Q You understand that those are not set in stone, 
tzolthose categories: that we cannot guaranteethat you wiTi 
(zllnever beaxne a ta 

? 
et. 

[221 A I un erstand. 
t231. Q This is an evolvin invest’ 
rzrlrdea whatwe miaht find. You un % B 

ation, and we have no 
erstan that. 

i25j A I ijndentand. 

OlCStarr Page 1 to Page 7 
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::i Q 
.: 1 correct? 

You are here pursuac: to a subpoena today; IS that : : served as Drrector of the Office of Management and Budoet 
roxrmately January through - January of ‘93 through 

A That’s correct. 
0 Drd that subooena as* for anv documents? 
A No, it drd not. 

time today I or my 

: 1: 1 that you please stop us an 
: 1: ; agreeable to you? .._. 
.--I 
..jr 

.--, 
$ 

Yes it is. 
All right.. Do 

: : 4 1 responsrbrlrtres as I’ve read r; t 
ou understand your rights and 

;:si 
::61 t 2: lt? 

em to you? 

‘171 A Mav 9 ask one aueshon? 
ilei Q Yes. sir. 

12: 1 you give me some A Wthr? 
ards to issues of executiie privilege, can 

u ante on that? 
Q We 8ave not - what I can tell you is I’m unaware 

iii!of any - nqbody.frpm the White House has contacted us about 

t2rlno!rworking for the V!h. 
execubve pnvrle e issues regard t: 3 1 an 

de House, I can rr? 
you, but I cannot - 

[,-slin that regard. 
guarantee anything 
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. . And if you need - if you feel that you need to 
ii ;step outside and consult wdh anyone or call over there, 
:31we II be ha 

R 
py to let you do so. 

Well, tf I feel that there’s a question that may 
i: 1 hinge on that. 1’11 at least raise that - 
,61 Q Okay, all right. 
:71 - for purposes of discussion. 
!31 z 
:5i A 

lt$m;;ld are you, Mr. Panetta? 

[1Cl Q 
!I?] A 

And where were you born? 
I was born in Montere California. 

!:l! Q And can you tell us A. 
l:slis? 

at your current occupation 

I i: i things. 
A My current occupation is - I’m doing a number of 

I am a Drstinguished Scholar at the California State 
: : 61 University at Montere Bay. I’m also a consultant to the 
[ :: ]Chancellor of the Call omra State University S stem. r I’m a 
[ ; 9 1 Distinguished Scholar at Santa Clara Univen 
1 i 9 1 teachrng there. 

4. doing 

I am also a member of the Board of the U.S. Stock 
ify;Exchange. and I’m a member of the Adviiory Board of 
122 1 Fleischman-Hillard, which is a public.r@ations firm. 
I231 Those are my principal acbvrbes. I’m also doing 
;:;;public speakrng. 

0 Is it fair you would identify yourself as a 
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1 I 1 politician? 
[-‘I. A After 30 years involved in poliiics. I think that’s 
:3!fatr. 
I41 Q You’ve had a career in poliiics, correct? 
15; A That’s correct. 
!61 0 Are you practicing law in the sense of - 
“1 A I’m not practicing at the present time, but I am a 
i g 1 member of the California Bar - 

tIEi 
Q Okay. 
A - and have practiced. 

I111 Q 
t:2]Administration; 

All right. You were a member of the Clinton 
is that correct? 

1131 A That’s correct. 
Q Can 

ii: j were in theAClinton 
x ou tell us the dates, from when to when. you 

dmrntstrabon? 

1 ::inominated b 
I was first appointed by the President or 

the President to be Director of the Office of 
[ 1 E IManagemen r and Budget. That would have been soon after the 
t:4lelection. I believe it was in ea December that I was 
[ :o 1 nominated for that posrtion. ?r an 
t21lSenate. I believe. mid-January 

I was confirmed by the 

I221 Q That would be 1 ?I 
‘ust before the inauguration. 
93? 

A That would have been in 19 - Janua 
II:!December of ‘92 that I was nominated approved 
f-5; Senate - confirmed by the Senate in January of ‘9 

. __, -- 

By the way, let me ask you, that’s commonly known 

.-. A OMB 

[I-i Q And those are the two 
1 I 8 j Director of the OMB and Chief of Sta rp 

ositions you’ve hekj, 
. 

I191 A That’s correct. 
Q 

iif i member of Congress? 
Before you were in the administration, you were a 

1221 A I was elected from the 16th District in California. 
[ 2 3; which is the central coast area of California, and my home 
~24 Iarea, and served in Congress for 16 ears e’ ht terms. I 
[ 2 s : think1 was actually elected to my nr r&lte&%be%me 
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I I ! that I was nominated to be Director of the Office of 
[2 1 Management and Budget. 

::;too. right? 
Q And you were chairman of a congressional committee, 

t51 A I was Chairman of the House Budget Committee and 
(6 1 also served on the House Agriculture Committee. 
[‘I Q How long have ou known President Clinton? 

A 
i:! up to Capitol Hill to - at the time I believe he was head of 

I met the Pres ent when he was governor and came idy 

[ IC { the Governors’ Conference and was presenting issues retated 
i 1 i 1 to education, and as Chairman of the House Budget Committee, 
112 ; I was asked by the leadershrp to attend a meeting in which he 
I 13; presented some issuesrelated. toe&cation 

r23j Aa That’s lmfeu 
I::imet him till then? 

- when you would have - you wouldn’t have even 

i 
Page 13 

t11 A That’t.mnect 
Q 

i : 1 OMB, until you 
Oka 

r 
. So you were not a dose friend at al until 

wen to OMB 
I41 A That’s coned: 

Q All right. Once you joined the adminiababon as 
i ,’ 1 Director of OMB then how would you charade&e your 
17 I relationshio with’him? 

1251 A That’s a fair statement. 

Page 8 to Page 13 
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[iI Q And there would be frequent Interaction then 
(2 1 between you and the Presrdent because of your role as 
I 31 Director of OMB. 
1 - 1  

141 A That’s correct. 
Q Would 

[lithe admrnrstration. bot X 
ou consider yourself now, having served in 
as Director of OMB and then as Chief 

[71of Staff, a friend or a dose friend of the President? 
(91 A I believe now, after servin 
[ glof OMB. but, in parhcular. as Chref of Sta 9t 

not only as Director 

r~olcould descnbe our relatronship as berng a 
I believe you 

friend of the 
[ 1 I 1 President. 
1121 Q 
il3jschool? 

By the way. where did you go to college and law - _ 
A Went to college at the Universe 

I:“sland also went there for law school. 
of Santa Clara 

Graduat e? - 19SO from 
[~s~undergraduate school. a political science major, and then 
(17lgraduated from law school in 1963. and then served in the 
i 1sjAnny for two years. 

Q 
:::;a nutshell definition o what you would descnbe as our 

Whenlou were Chief of Staff, can you just give us 

t21jduties as the Chief of Staff of the President of the Y. nded 
[ 2 2 1 States? 

A As you can imagine, the responsibilities of a chief 
I::iof staff are very large and ve 
1253are - the primary roles that I x 

encompassrnp. but these 
ad were as fol ows as Chief 
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f 1 I of Staff: 
Number one to or 

I:ithink I was asked to t& Chie ? 
anize the White House staff. I 
of Staff largely to try to 

14 1 bring some sense of organization and discipline to the White 
t5lHouse staff. So, first and foremost, organize the White 
[ 61 House staff and provide a chain of command and discipline. 

Secondly, oversee the staff, basical 
1 lithe staff so that it would serve the President o 7 

coordinate 
the United 

[ 9 1 States. 
Thirdly, oversee the development of policy for the 

i :y! President, both on domestic and foreign affairs issues, and 
l IZ lensure that whatever briefings the President needs, that they 
f 13 1 are property developed for presentation to the President. 

I was, as a member of Congress, largely involved in 
I::icongressional relations as well so that I would deal with 
116jboth the congressional Leadership and members of Congress 
t17jwh0, because of my association with them, would often call me 
t1sjon various issues. So I did a lot of congressional relations 
119 lwork in that capacity. 

Also haven I:; jManagement and 
been Director of the office of 

Bu 8 get and Chairman of the House Budget 
r22jCommittee. I was very involved on budget issues durin 

I 
that 

123lr riod of bme, and so advised the President on many o the 
[ 2 4 1 udget tssues that he was presented with. 
(251 I was also responsible for overseeing his schedule, 
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( 11 to set u a schedule for the President, and work with the 
12 jschedu & rs in making final decisions on that, and the 
[ 3 ] President. 

And then, lastly. I would periodically travel with 
[ “51 the President. One of the things I wanted to do was to 
[ 6 lensure that someone from the Chief of Staffs Office, either 
[ 7 1 myself or a Deputy Chief of Staff, would accompany the 
[ 8 1 President on tn s and control the trip. And I would 

[1ojresponsibi&y. ’ 
[ 3jperiodicall do at. but my deputies would also have that 

So that in a nutshell were some of the 
I ::; responsibilities that I had as Chief of Staff. 

Q I want to focus on the first part of your answer. 
[::iYou said that one of the thin 

9. 
s you were brought in to - I’m 

[ 15 ] not quoting you exactly,. but o improve,. perhaps, 
[ 16jorganization and discipkne and the chatn of command. 
I171 Was there a feeling that there had been 
(18 1 insufficient attention to those issues under your 
i 13 j predecessor? 

liy;Staff - 
A When the President asked me to become Chief of 

(221 Q Pardon me must a minute. 
MR. WISENBERG: Let the record reftect that 

I::) somebody opened the door and then closed it. 
I251 

(11 
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BY MR. WISENBERG. 
121 Q Canyon. 
131 A When the President asked me to become Chref of 
I 4 I Staff, he expressed concern about the operatrons of the V&tie 
(5 1 H,ouse and that the operahons. he felt. were not suffiuenrv 
[6]disciplrned or organrzed to serve him In the most efficient 
! 7 1 way, and that one of the first requrrements he asked me to do 
18 lwas to try to organize the White House staff In a wa tha! 
[ slwould be much more disciplined and much more e ffy rcrent rn 

[ 1 o ] serving him. 

[ i 6 1 there was - for lack of a better term. there was not 
[17jsufficient disci line. 
t~s~offices in the & 

People would wander through the 
est Wing. They would go into the Oval Ofhce 

t15jor into the exterior of the Oval Ofhca wdhout oftentimes 
tzojany particular appointment. 

There were a number of eneralists. By that I mean 
i:::individuals that had no particular de ?i ned 
1231 kind of walking into meetings and givin 

role other than 

124 Itherefore, there was a lack of indivtdua i!r 
opinions,,and, 
who camed a 

[25]Sp&fiC job description oC.re+on&#y. 
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[11 Q That sounds like a good job, by the way, to have 
[2 1 opinions and walk into meetings, 

t:~politics. 
A There’s nothing like being a generalist in 

I51 flauahterj 
i6i 0 I’m sorry. Carry on. 
171 A And then, thirdly, the briefings for the President 
[ 8 1 would oftentimes turn into long meeti 
[ 91 not 

s because they were 

t lo j An cf 
roperly controlled or they were no “9 property re ared. 
so oftentimes discussions on issues, instea SP’ o being 

I 1 i I kmited to a pefiod of time pursuant to a schedule co& 
[ 12 joften drag on for an hour or even two hours. And there was 
[13jconcem about that as+vel!. 
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tt]Chtef ofStaff responsrbla for personnel and schedukn 
tljarena as well as somepdiqaraaa,3&t4a~ 

a 
(31 responsrb&tiis under that. 
111 would report to. 

So that everybody knew w o thay 

And then lastly a created a greater focus for tba 
i ~~President so that when h$ wanted to deal with a particular 
[ 7 1 issue, he was not doin a number of events that - 

MR WtSENiERG: Let the record reflect that someone 
1 iiopened the d&r and dosed it right away. Mr. UdoH is going 

[lo] to investigate. 
Ill1 BY MR.WlSENBERG: 
I121 Q Canyon. 
t131 A This was a little more of the White House you saw. 
1141 ILauahterI 
iisj And “we used to - and we would create a focus then 
I I 6 1 on trying to ensure that if the PMdent was going to do a 
t17jpart event, that that would be the event of the da as 
[ 18 jopposed to having a number of events and there p _ ore not 
I i 91 present a dear message to the Amarican people. 

_ 
IE~involved in. 

Those were really the primary areas that I was 

Q You mentioned 
~::~officas in the West Wing. Wha p” 

opla wandering around in and out o 

rzrldoing - 
do yw recall s 

what. if anything, to restrict access in t 
picaky 

rzsjWing? 
e West 

OlCStarr Page $4 to Page f9 
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11; A 
I? 1 made sure that 

I mean, the most important thing was that I had 
no one should just wander down to the Oval 

i 3 !Office unless a staff member was associated with a parttcular 
14 1 briefing. Or if, you know, we were doing somethi,ng on a 
rslpolicy issue,. I normall 
16 1 ought to go rn on a 

Indicated who - what.rndrvrduaIs 
po ICY bnefing to the President. Y 

So that if he was having a pokey briefing, I would 
ii 1 normally provide clearance as to who WOUM go in for the 
I 9 1 poll 

cty 
briefing. Or if the President was meeting with staff 

;lo]or tf he President was having an event. I would normally 
! 1 I 1 review who would be there for a particular event. 

And then when we would brief the President on - or 
I::isometimes prepare the President for an event, I would 
: 14 1 determine who would go in with me to brief the President 
t15jbefore an event. - 

0 I guess if you don’t have a system like that, its 
i :t; kind of natural for - 

MR. WISENBERG: Let the record reftect that Mr. 
I: i 1 Udolf as reentered the room alone. 
1201 BY MR. WISENBERG: 
t211 Q I guess if 
[ 221 natural for people to wan r 

ou don’t have a system like that, its 
to be seen with the President or 

f23jwant to get in meetings with the President. 
A You know, obviously, people that work at the White 

~::~House. I think its a natural instinct to want to try to 

ii1 Pardon me. go ahead. 
I?! A0 I did not - I had just been reelected to the 
f 3 1 Congress and would have been Charrman of the House Budget 
! 4 jCommrttee for that next term. so I did not seek the off& of 
r 5 1 Director of OMB But. obvrously, at the time the President 
[ 6 1 first came In. he had representahves from - as President- 
[7 lelect talked to me about economic issues that would face the 
j s 1 new admrnrstratron and asked for my recommendations as to 
[ 9 1 individuals to be rn certain key economic positions. 

IlO1 I did not recommend myself. But later on I was 
(11 lasked by Mr. Chnstopher. who headed up the reelect team - 
1121 Q That would be Warren Christopher? 
1131 A Warren Chnstooher. .~., 
i141 
Cl51 

Q Who became Secretary of State in the first one 
A That’s correct. 

1161 Q He then communicated with me that the President was 
t171interested in interviewin 
t 18 1 Director of the Office of % 

me for that possible 
dp 

osition of 

Q 
anagement and Bu get. 

I191 The people who would talk to you and ask you both 
fzojabout economic issues and your recommendations, who were 
tz 11 they, if you recall? 

A I was first visited b 
I:::and just general1 asked me abou 1. 

Robert Reich who came in 

J 
Issues related to the 

r241economy. what o to on the bud et, what steps to take what 
[251 my recommendatrons were, kr ndg43fageneJeCeverviewbf 
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f 1 Ieither see or be with the President as often as you can, 
12 1 because that’s one of the - I think one of the rewards of 
I 3 I workina in the White House, is to have that kind of 

ut I wanted to as Chief of Staff, assure that 
I 6 loeoole met with the President if thev had a reswnsibilitv to 

But one of the concerns that was raised with me 
i :i I when I took over Chief of Staff was the concern about 
( I 91 individuals who would walk in without any appointment and try 
f2ojto see the President. 
1211 Q And, I take it, that wasn’t a security concern, it 
[ 22 rwas a job efficiency concern. 
I231 
1241 

_ A That’s correct. 
Q And those were raised with YOU bv the President 

i;~ihimsetf- 
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[ 1 leconomic issues. 
f21 
f3jwho 

And then after that, I think it was Mr. Christopher 
came by and asked - asked the same questions, but then 

t4 lasked more about personnel, who would be my recommendation 
tslfor Secretary of the Treasury, who woukl be my recommendation 
[ 6 1 for Director of OMB. who woukl be my recommendation for other 
f7jeconomrc 

go 
sitions within the administration. 

1 ii Reich? 
Anybody else other than Mr. Christopher and Mr. 

f101 A Those are the only ones I can recall. I believe I 
[ 1 I J ma 
( 12 1 ha J 

have had some phone conversations with Gene Spurling. who 
headed up some of the economic issues during the 

f13]campaign. 
Q 

I::;for interviews with anybody? 
After you heard your name floated, did you go in 

(161 A The President. The call came from Mr. Christopher 
t17lthat the President wanted to talk with me, and that - I was 
[ 18 1 asked to go to Like Rock to sit down with the President. 
[I91 And I did that and was taken to the 
fzojmansion and was interviewed by the Presiden 9 

overnor’s 

1211 hour. We talked economic issues and - 
for well over an 

(221 0 One-on-one interview? 
1231 A Yes. 

Q 
i::lbefore you went in to see the President? 

And did you interview with anyone else down there 

Page 22 Page 25 

Ill 
A0 That’s cmrect. -when he was telling you what he wanted you to 

I:jaccomplish as Chief of Stat?? 
(41 A That’s correct. 

Q By the way, those two deputies you mentioned, the 
/ 21 policy andihe per;onnel - 
I71 
I91 

2 When I first became C tef of Staff Harold lckes 
who were those peofte? 

[ :iiwas given the responsibility to handle the political 
1 II loperations, plus some policy areas, to oversee some potii 

rzorrequest - 
I211 Q Pardon me. 
I221 MR. WISENBERG: 

If:ithedoor. 
THE FOREPERSON: 

Did that happen gain? 
It almost rd. b no one opened 

t251 MR. WISENBERG: 

[II A No, not t!!tJu~ti!. 

Page 20 to Page-25 
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: ; rarsed IS that there was no ob.:ous tnp director on each of 
.: I the tnps that the President ha? taken prior to my becomrng 
.3 j Chref of Staff, and that some~~s it would vary, but there 
.d I was no clear leadership on a tnp. 
i’ In addition to that. people would often 
6 j trips that were not cleared in any manner, so tha P 

o on the 
oftentrmes 

i 7 ] people would accompany the President that had no partrcular 
: 3 ;policy purpose for bein on the tnp. 
:>I And so I did Lo things Number one. I wanted to . _ 3: make sure that whoever was t?ere. either myself as Chief of 

.., _ _ iStaff. or a Deput 
J 

Chief of SM. was recognized as the key 
:z ; trip director. An , therefore, rf there were uestions of 
; 3 I policy or personnel, that that person could %s turned to for 
i 4 j decisions. 

:I51 And, secondly, we would look at who would go on a 
: I 6 I oarticular trip and make decisions about who would accompany 
! :; i the President. 
:131 Q When you say %ve,” that would be you and your 

eputies? 
A MvcPlf and the deouties, that’s correct. 

r you ever became aware of in 

::s)d 
:201 

‘Q 
._. __.. _.._ _._ -- ----- 
Was there anvbc& else 

ii: 1 addition to the Pres 
:zs)Chiel 
:24 )apparentlyAwas_ 
:251 

_ Trident who wasypushjng for, you to become 
f of Staff so;;at&r+r could bnng this drsciplrne that 

The Vice President is a friend that - someone i 

Page 27 Page 30 

: 11 have known, for a ion time. We were. elected,to Con ress the 

islactual 
; 2 1 same rr: In 1976. %td it was the Vce President w#o 

came to me and sad mat the President was 
{ 4 1 interes ed rn talkin with me about being Chief of Staff. 
r 51 And I told the Vice B resident at that time that I was not 
iijinterested. but he continue to push. 

Q 
ii 1 indirectly, for you. 

Anybody else who was pushing, directly or 

A You have the President and the Vice President, you 
~~~don’t many others. I don’t know. I don’t know. I think 
: I 1 that Mac McLarty, my predecessor, often talked t,o me - or 
:z 1 asked me for my recommendahons as to how to improve the 
: 3 I operations of the White House, and I would give him that .~~. 

: : 4 1 guidance. 
::51~ Cl What were your typical hours when you were Chief of 

i 24 i initiated’as Chief ‘of Staff. 
;251 The first staff meeting was at 7:30, and then it 

__ ----- 
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::ojmake. 
There might be additional briefings later in the 

: i i i afternoon and sometimes receptions in the evenin 
I .; 1 was a pol&sl meeting during - as we had 
.:I lcamoaran. sometimes I wouldnl get home 
ii5jthate&nin 
;I61 r? ormally. I think around 8:30 or 980. I might be 
: :7 1 able to leave. So a normal day would run somewhere between 
: : 5 )7:00 to about 9:O0. 1O:OO in the evenin 

bo its a L4-nour JOD. 
Cl How many ttrnes would you -what do you define as I 
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[: ;the middle;f the night, after midnight? 
I remember getting a - I mean, the first ca!l I 

i ;; got as Chief of Staff was about 2:30 in the morning, and fl 
;: : came from a Secret Service agent who told me that a plans had 
15: gone Into the White House. 
F Q If you can recall, how many times - I don’t expect 

i:; an exact number, but how man 
r 

times when you were Chef of 
(pi : Staff would you get a call from he President waking you up, 
t 31 the President personally wakingJou up? 
1c; 
111 

;121 

Aa “,o,o, many times. 

A It was a number of times. I can’t give you an 
113 Iestimate. I mean, I just, you know, it - it would happen a 
[ I I j number of times. 

0 Can we say less than 60? Is that - do you feel 
I:zlcomfortable with that? 
t171 A Dunn the time I was Chief of Staff? 

Q Yes. 3 mean, if we could do it like 25.60. 
~:~~understanding that you’re not - 

A Somewhere between 25 and SO, I guess, but. again, 
i:y!that’s an estimate. I donY recall you know - 

Q In a typical month - again we’re not holding you. 
i:::We know there’s no way you can remember exact1 

z 
In a 

(24 Itypical month how many times would you get awa 
tz5)callfrom the President..asChief-ofStaff? 

ened by a 

111 
121 

Aa ;e;,typical month? 

I31 A 
Q 

Sometimes maybe ten, ten times. 
I41 Would that be ty 

A It varied. I’mjus 
156ibest estimate of 

P 
ical or unusual? 
- I’m giving you. I guess, 

t11be- 
Oy 

ou know, ;r 
ou know - and, again. sometrmes it wou !y 
I went home and went to bed at 1l:OO. 

ts111:3 - you’re usually exhausted in these jobs, so normally 
tslwhen I ot home, I would try to et to bed, and then perhaps 

1 ~o)soon a f! er that, I might get a ca from the President. r9 
Q By the way, it’s very hot in here. and I’m sure the 

[ii~~%~/~%rke mine&soon. 
if you wanted to take your coat. I’m probably 

I::iStaff? 
About how many people did you supervise as Chief of 

A Well the primary su rvision. again, was, you 
i:tiknow with the deputies but if ou oak at the key 

Wl-ritecuse crbvious~ that 

’ 
[ 18) presidential personnel iir me 
tlglwould number, I would estimate, somewhere close d 20. But 
tzo)then. obvious1 
tzl)of the White f? 

you have the responsibility to oversee all 
ouse staff, which can total a few hundred. 

Q And when you say total White House staff, you would 
i::ibe the ultimate person in control, I guess, next to the 
rz4 I President himself. 
iZ5i A That’s correct. 
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-.- 2 
I: Ithat indud: - a~?%%?%%?& people in the Old 
t3lExecutiie QfJce B!rildin~? 

I’m ‘ust trying o see if 7Nhite House staff is a 
I:itemt of art. ou know, does that mean Executive office of 
r 61the President? .-, 

A Well. I think, yeah, you do have to break thii down 
!i;so mat you understand. I mean. my da 
[spvith a lirp(te$ grou of White House sta x 

-today contact was 
that had key 

;;;;;s~;brlrttes. $at was - and that was 
7 30 meeting and at the 8:15 broader sta meettn . 

u;# handy 

But then there are obviously a la I::; people under those individuals, both rn the 
e number o 

rte House as 
(14 Iwell as the Old Executive OffIce Building who ultimately you 
tls)could say as Chief of Staff I am responslbk for, but 
t16)obviousty did not deal with on a day-to-da basks. 

Iiilindusive? 
Q Okay. And that number o ? . 200. ts that meant to be 
What I’m asking ou about is uttiite chain of 

tl5lcommand. In other words, i! a decision has to be made to 
t20)reward. discipline, transfer the people ou have ultimate 
12 11 line authority over - you mentioned a xs ure of 200. Was it 
122 1 potentially even targe0 
1231 
t241 % 

A 
~sy&%rdude in OEB and - 

1251 I think it goes up pretty high. I can’t remember 
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[ ii the exact - I th r< the overall number I recall In terms 
I? loverall staff was you know, almost 5.000 or 6.000. I 
(3lbelleve. 
141 Q In !he White House Itself you thmk it’s roLx$ly a 
! slcouple of hundred7 
161 A I !link that’s correct, 
[7! {Grand Jury Exhibtt No. LP-1 was 
Is! marked for identification.) 
191 BY MR WISENBERG: 
101 Q rve 

6 
ut in front of ou what we’ve marked as Grand 

111 Jury Exhibit LP-i o you have &at in front of you? 
121 A Yes, I do. 

This has been given 

i17i . $ zqota pen. - ’ 
m gomg to ask you to help us determrne. 

1:89ithe best okyou\gmory. what some rooms are. Is that okay? 
to 

t201 
Q We have at kind of the center, at the bottom, the 

I::iQval Qffice. is that correct? 
1231 A That’s correct. It states “Oval office.” 
i241 Q That’s how I knew. And it’s also oval-shaped. 
r.251 That’s where the President conducts most of hrs 
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[ 11 business when he’s in the White House? 

I$ i President 
A That’s correct. The President: and this 
- it’s probably varied throughout hrstory but 

I 4 Ithis President drd much of his work in that office. the Oval 
[5]Oftice. at his desk 

0 Now ou see the little room, or odd-shaped - 
it; almost likeAa rn;p-of he United States up In the left come0 r 
[El 
191 Q 

Ilolnot a room. 
What is that room? Or what is that thing? h’s 

Ill1 A 
I121 Q 

This area here (indicating)? 

A 
Yes. Is that a room or a walkway or - 

Cl31 That actually is a walkway. It ives the 
fi4lappearance of be8 a 9 
I 15)that appears to the “ik 

room, but if you look a that hallway 
ft of what you indicated, this is 

ti6)really a continual walkway that goes through here 
I 17)(indicating 
t1s1 4 

and - I’m not quite sure how this - oh, okay. 
eah. 

tIs)(indicatin 
the walkway would go like this through here 

rzolthe recep 9 
). and then this would actualty be the entrance to 
Ion area and to the Oval Qffice. 

I211 Q Okay. .You have drawn with a blue pen that weLe 
;;;;zgfnjot&n arrow teadrng from - to the left of what Ive 

as the shape on our map that likes kind of like 
tz4)a - 
I251 A Crossword puzzle. 
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Ill Q Yeah, perverted map of the U.S., you know. with a 
121unicom on the top. 
I31 A ‘ 
I41 Q 
151 A 

%%tualty - it’s about - 
It’s about - if you took at the Oval office. Ys 

-t6)aboutat11:00.ifyouwereiookingatadock,andat(ii:OO) 
1711s that symbol, and that really - thus kind of distorts it, 
I a )&cause I think those are the doors that open up in each - 
[ s)nto these different areas, or 

c? 
ives the impression that it’s 

[ lojan enclosure. It’s not an en osure, it’s basicalty a 
I I 1 tconbnuous walkway that goes through there, and those doors 
tt2)are normall left open. 
1131 cr Pardon me just a moment. 
I141 I want to make sure I understood. The file arrow 
I istthat we’ve called a map that looks like - somebody said it 
I I 6 I looks like a bird - ,__, .~ - --..- 
I171 A JUROR: It does look like a bird. 
(181 BY MR. WISENBERG: 
il9i 0 - wi+.. its win 
rzolwalkway area. It’s just that t 8 

s open, that is actually also a 
ere are doors - it’s 

121 lendosed on all these sides by doors. 
I221 A And those doors are normally open. I rarety saw 
1~31those doors closed 
I?41 Q And are those like doors that you could~ust push 
rz51open. or are they like doors with a knob that you open. 

A My recollection 5 that they’re doors with a knob 
.f :that you can close, normal doers 
: Q 
: ‘clear 

All right.. Let’s Mme these so that the record’s 
I’d like you to mark the iong walkway to the left of 

5 .the - what I’ll call the eagle 
: ‘that as Walkway 1. You wou 

?t now, if ou could mark 

: f: long walkway. 
?I it!7 agree w me that that’s a 

A This is a long walkway. 
i‘ 

r. - .one. we’re 
Q Okay. That wook! be this walkway here, this long 

.-- oing to mark as Wa!kwa 1. /.. _--_ he witness marked the dy 
MR. WISENBERG: 

ocument.) 
;.-/ *-. 
113: Q And the area endosed -that you’ve identified as 
I: 4 : enclosed by doors that we’ve called the eagle and the map, 
: : 5 : I’d like you to mark that as Walkway 2. 
!16j 
[:;I 

&!-$hw$E;, document.) 

11e; Q Now, the Walkway 2 area, in turn 
t~swell. it goes into the Rooseveft Room, it goes into *9 

oes into - 
he Oval 

120 ~Office. or it gets you access to the Roosevett Room and 
r 2: I access to the Oval Office: is that correct? 

A That’s correct 
131 Q Are those - 
I24! _ 
I251 

(11 
I21 
137 
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$ $a;‘~ right. 

A The h oosevelt Room door is dosed and the door 
i4 jthe Oval Qffice is closed. 
151 Q 
[ 6 1 or just closed? 

Do you know whether or not they’re typically ldcked 

A My recoltection is that the door to the Roosevett 
ii j Room is normally not locked so that if you wanted to access 
(9 lthe Roosevelt Room, you 

(1 o 1 in. 
could .ust turn the handle and walk 

But that access to the Oval &tics is locked. 
Ilil Q Now, there’s atso -Walkway 2 gives you direct 
I 12 1 access to Walkway 1, correct? 
il31 A That’s right. 
(14! Q And then it goes up to a room that’s not labeled, 
I I 5 1 or perhaps to another walkway that’s not labeled. What is 
[lhjthat area, if you know? 
il71 A 
I I B J 

)! 
ou’re 

That area there, which is, again, located - if 
in Walkway 2. it would be the upper 

[ 191 .lke a door or - I’m not quite sure how to de ne this. Th’ -.rt looks But 
I 2 o 1 rt would be that - on the right-hand side of that symbol 
tzllthat we described - 
1221 Q Walkwa 2. 
1231 A -ofWa x, ay 2 That leads to an area that is 
124 )usualty and can be used as a waiting area for those who 
[ 25 1 erther are visiting with the President. or if Ts a cabinet 
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(11 mop meeting, sometimes stat? mt&mwthet~foremey 
(2 1go into the cabinet room. There are some chaits in that room 
t 3)for seating. 
I41 And it can also be used as a continual walkway that 
I 5 1 leads to - back to the lobby of the White House, or if you 
I 6 lconbnue to follow that, will ultmety lead to where the 
[7]PreSS is located. 
187 Q All riaht. Why don’t we designate that as Waiting 
[3]kea l? 

I101 
I111 

ghe witness marked the document.) - 
R WlSENBERG: Does everybody know where we 

11.71 A JUROR: Almost. Yes, okay. 
1131 BY MR. WISENBERG: 

Q Now 
i::;lobby. That’s mark l&K 

ou ment&ed the lobby. We can see the 

r1s1Area 1 
I take it the area between Waiting 

- we’ve called Waiting Area 1 and the lobby is yet 
I 17 I another walkwav. 
I181 A That’s correct. 
I191 Q All ht. Let’s aLtthat.kI&lkway.3. 
t201 MR. WtS?NBERG: We all know where that is? 
1211 THE WITNESS: That’s the area that’s just north of 
122 lthe Roosevelt Room. There’s a walkway there. That woufd 
[23]be -what are we oin to describe that as? 
r241 BY MR.%&NBERG: 
i25i Q Walkway 3. 
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The area next to Waiting Area No. 0 is an area that 
:::!I would call another walkway. You1 notice stairs there to 
[ 24 ] the fig& a Se!‘& of tines t&e. ws a &Imn and 
tzstthat s mvell leads downstarn to tha lower level of the 
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e witness marked the documanL 

And, I take it, th oor leading from WalkwayOto 

i ilt~~~~~~~~~~t~~~. t think 
t 16 1 I’ve never seen that door used. 

0 Now, the ofticar that you mentioned - or Secret 
~::~Servica parson - 

A Actual 
~:~~press is brought into 3[kcabin~.-fofaphoto 

lapel ze. Thatdoorisusedwhenthe 

t211”pgprt . unity wrth whoever is visiing the Pnxrdent tn the 
122~~3 met roam. Normally the press B bmugM in through that 

__-- -_ .-___-__ 

111 Q 
I~lCOrlM? 

That’s the door from Walkway~o the cabinet mom. 

131 A That% right 
Q You mentinneda 

Illof some kind. 
_ personoranm 

I61 A That’s correct. 
Q Isthatinthatfirstliileftboxupandtothe 

I:;right of Walkwa l ?, 

l:t~littleboxthathas 
A &ts~hLLs~outu~mW~.w%&into that 

tllttightpfwherethat isbcatedfwmaltyi;adeskthathas 
f12la poke ofticar located at 

iiei 0 AndcanIaskyoutotetluswhenyouroftice- 
ttsjwhere the Chief of Staffs OfFice was? 
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It’s not actually designated on t& map 

A Tharscort-ect. 

Would this little thing mean anythii to you. this 
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I&t recnlkction is 
A “fi~~p;;$~~~~$a$.“” 

r3wper rigM-hand amsr ofwhatiscalledtheovalQftke 
141comp~x. 

0 AltNht. Sothepresidenbaldiningroomhin 
$re oval fmice Camplex? 
I71 A Tharscorred 

ii;within it. +?ie dZ$%cnn is within tha Qval Off& 
necessarily the entire thing but it’s 

r101ccwJkx. 
A Thereis-inthatrodmcaltedtheQvalQffrca 

Page 43 
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: I Q All n 
I! 

ht. 
: 2 j think IS a d?rway 1, at 

Then to the nght of that is what you 
leads into the pantry. 

:?j That s correct 
‘4: Q Okay. Why don’t we put a “PD” for pantry door? 
‘5 !And il you need to an arrow there from somewhere else, you 
iican 
1 

Ii 
he witness marked the document.) 
R WISENBERG: “F” IS the top of the Oval Oftice 

;jComplex room, the top white is the ftreplace. and to the 
: : : j right IS “PD” for antry door. 
.1.1 ,_a, A JU OR: X 
:,7, < _- > BY MR. WlSE%%tG: 
.‘3’ Q And the dining room is within the Oval Offtce - 
1: c i what’s been designated as the Oval Oflice Complex. 
[:5! Can you tell us who is in - you’ve mentioned in 
! : 5: Waiting Area 1 there are chairs there. Is there typically a 
c :T 1 secretary if an kind in Warbng Area l? 
[I91 1: o. there s not. 

0 
iii;back lo the Oval 

CadffyouJell us w\; the area is - ny heading us 
ice t&elf. can ou tell us -there s at 

f 2: 1 the very top of the Oval Office a II le area that looks - 
1 :I 1 It’s shaped like the fireplace in the dining room Oval office 
ri3lComplex. Is that a fireplace? 
1241 A That’s a fireplace. 
1251 Q Okay. And let’s just mark that with an “F,” too. 

Page 45 

!?I 
kc MR. WISENBERG: 

he witness marked the document.) 
[?I 

i:lon the up 
Q Then there is a parently a doorway leadin at 1:00 

f 5 1 Office; I hat correct? p” 
r right. a doorway o another room out of the P 8val 

!61 A Yes. That is normally the entrance that is used 
; 7 1 when goin 

i ilasking 
8 

in and out to see the President. 
Is that typically - and these questions that I’m 

: 3 j open, 
ou about the doors are they typically dosed or 

t x at’s based on your betvice - your answer as when you 
i: 1 were Chief of Staff? 
121 A When I was Chief of Staff. I’m basing it on my 
: 3 : experience as Chief of Staff. 
:41 Q And was that generally kept closed - 

I151 
116! or open? Closed? 

And what is the room or walkway that that goes 
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at’s coirre,ct. 

rou could olease mark that for us as Reception 
11clArea 1. 
I151 

I: f i break. Before you all leave I need to mention one thing to 
t 18 1 ou. 
[ 141 g 

but I’m gomg to ask, wih the permission of the 
oreman. ma the witness be excused? 

[ZO! THE FOREPERSON: Yes. 
1211 MR. WISENBERG: We’ll come get you in about ten 
(22 1 minutes. 
113: 

Y 
ltness excused. Witness recalled.) 

HE FOREPERSON: 
li:iyou that you’re still under oath. 

Mr. Panetta, I’d like to remind 

---__, 
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ii: THE WITNESS: All right 
171 MR. WISENBERG: Let the record reflect that Mr. 
i: ( Panetta has reentered the grand jury room and that we have a 
: 4 ! quorum. 

BY MR. WISENBERG: 

0 
i :ii map and you go u 

And then if you walk through that doorway on the 

[ 14 1 designated there. P 
and - it looks like a wall area is being 

f you go beyond that wall and take a 
[ 15 1 right, you have drawn a rectangle, which is Betty Currie’s 
[ I 6 ] desk; IS that correct? 
[I71 A That’s correct. 
[I81 Q 

$ 
All right. And if you could - 

[I91 
17rl1 
L-“, 

y;oufant me to mark that VC”? 

I211 
[221 

~Mi$&g&ge~dt~ document.) 

I::;Area 1. 
Q And where we’ve marked the general area, Reception 

I251 A That’SwtTeCt. 
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r11 Q All ri ht. 
[21 MR. WISl!NBERG: YOU all need to see where that desk 
[ 3 1 is located? 
I41 A JUROR: We saw it. 
[51 MR. WISENBERG: You saw mat? Okay. 
[61 BY MR. WISENBERG: 
f71 0 Now, who else is in that reception area, typicaliy, 
18 1 when you were Chief of Staff besides Ms. Cunie? 

A Normally the Only people that are allowed in that 
I:,‘; area are those that are individuals that are either 
I 111 deliverin 
I 12 1 Hemrei .ci! 

something. obviously, to Betty Cumie or to Nancy 
, who’s also located in that area. I assume we’ll 

[13lget to that, but - 
[I41 Q Yes. 

A And then it would be no-1 me staff or 
I : 2; individuals that are about to meet with the 3 . resident. It is 
[ 17 1 normall not an area where peo le are allowed to simply stay 
1 valor wan J er. It’s an area that IS, f!i r a better term. is 
[ 19 ] normally the preliminary step to going in to meet with the 
[ 20 1 President. 
1211 
r221 

0 Okay. No loitering. 
A That s correct. .~.. 
Q 

i::)addition to Be 
Now, who else is regularly stationed there in 

1251 A %&r?;u - again, exiting that door at 1:OO 
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[ 11 off the Oval Dffice,if 
(2 1 left-hand side a smal p” 

crproceedup, you’d see-atrmgthe 
area that has an access off of 

r3lReception Area 1. Located in that area is Nancy Hemreich. 

I:idoorway? 
Q Okay. You’re talking about what looks like a 

A 
1761 indentation off of Rece 

That’s correct. Again it’s a little V-shaped 
tion Area No: 1. 

181 Q Is it, in act, a doorway? P 
191 A That really 6 a doorway. 

[lOI Q 
A 

Okay. And is that typically.ke t open or dosed? 
Normally it was open, althoug there were often R 

I::; times when Nancy, in order to do her work. would keep that 
rl3lclosed. 
I141 0 Now, Nancy is exact1 where? 

A Nancy -the desk for 5J 
i : 2 : approximatety in the middle of that area. 

ancy Hemreich is locat+ 

I171 Q The V-shaped area? 
I181 A This (indicating). 
I191 Q LetmeloakuJl 
I201 A Thig prea herep! Dhroluy. 

Q 
$:1] basically 

Sotisinthea ual-theroomthatison- 

T 
ht on top of the Oval Office. 

Yeah. If you look north of the Oval Qffice. on the 
:::; other side of the fireplace there is a little area there 
[zs,That is a very small area.‘but it does contain a desk’for 
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(11 Nancy Hemrelch. who is the other atde to the President. 
I:! 

6!f MR. WISENBERG: 
he wrtness marked the document.) 

131 
Id! Q 
I51 A 

;;ti;.u’ve drawn a - 

I51 Q A desk for her about in the middle, or the middle 
i~jand maybeA-- 
[B! Approximately in the mlddle of that room. 
[9i cl In the middle of that room would be - and you put 

[ 10 1 an “NH”? Is that how you - 
ill1 A That’s correct. 
l12! Q Hernreich is how you pronounce it? 
113i A That’s correct. 

Q And what is that - is there a name for that room 
I::;she*s in? fA that considered her office? 
I161 It was ahva s known as Nancy’s office. 

Q Okay. An dy that doorway is usually open, but she 
i :i i woukl close it if she needed to do work. 
1191 A That’s correct. 

0 All ri 
i:yidirect access from 8 

ht. And it doesn’t look like there’s any 
t at office to the Oval Office, correct? 

I221 A There is not. 
Q All ri ht. So, again, in, the reception area 

I::;itsetf other than Be r251man;led or unmann$ $;$$s desk. Is there any other 

3220 

Leon Panetta, 1128199 Xuu(9) .__ 

Page 53 

i I! number we’re on: Do we have a walkway here going frm - 
[ 1 iwould you call thrs a walkway. pr a short walkway that goes 
:x!from Rece tion Area 1 to Waltlng Area l? 
141 II That’s correct. It’s a very short walkway. 
li: 0 All rioht No door7 
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III A No, there is not. 
Q All right. And it’s typically people makin 

!:ldeliveties or staff members about to meet the Presiden P. ; IS 
ii jthat wrrez? 
191 Rioht. or sometimes visitors who are aoina in to 
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111 A That’s ri ht. 
Q It would %e people who were basicall 

I G /stature and knew the White House well enough wou d feel 7 
had enough 

[I 1 comfortable going in there. 
I51 A That’s correct. 

Q All 
It i Chief of Staff to tigh “9 

ht. Was it one of our accom lishments as 
en 

18 1 Reception Area 1 - 
up that area - L .P t’s start WI h 

[911? 
as to who could get into Reception Area 

A That’s correct. Normally - a ain, for example, 
I :iifor staff going in to brief the President, on 
(12 lwho were going to 

? 

,g ?hose staff 
o in to brief the Presl ent were normally 

113 lallowed intp Regp ion Area 1. 

111 BY MR. WISENBERG: 
I21 Q And then I think 

Of# 
ou’ve testified that tk door at 

13 111 :OO. ieadin from the Oval ce 
[I Idosed; is tha correct? 9 

to Walkway 2 is typiiliy 

151 A That’s wnect. 
I61 Q A?d if you could ut a “C” there. 
171 
I81 

~pMgm$&rna&~~e document.) 

c:Z;also? 
Q Is that the one you told us is typicatfy locked 

_ 
1111 A That’s correct. 

Q You’ve mentioned that the door that 
~::~outside walkway is qpicall closed. so I’d ask you 

ipOestothe 

114 Ican M a little tiny “C into t at. 
you 

1151 
1161 

pMpw$&&nax!&dt~ document.) 

Q And I’m just goin to do right now ones that we’ve. 
t:iitalked about. You’ve mention ec? Jhat the door from Reception 
[ls]Area 1 to the_qbinet room is typically closed, so 1’11 ask. 

iipiyou to “~~vjt%~gt?dt~ document.) 

Q 
[::iarea to Waitin 

You’ve mentioned that the door from the reception 

rzslto put a zero t 8 
Area No. 1 is typically open. 1’11 ask ou 

ere. We note your testimony that on Le L 

I141 
f 

I:zjaccumulatin 
t?%t particularly like a lot of staff 

SQ ;;;;the Pres&Qn 
in that.area because that’s very close to where 
s;wc&T.nngi 

ow about Waiting Area l? Was it one of 
(~slyour accomplishments, to also tighten up even people who got 
l_7ol Into Waitin Area No. l? 
1211. w Normally ople were not allowed to 
[22 1 ust sim 

That’s right. 

( c 
ly wait around in that area. p” hat was either for 

[231 hose w o were about to 
[ 2 4 1 or about to go into a 

o into a meeting with the President 
mee P Ing In the cabinet room. 

[251 Q This is just a - I’m trying to see what walkway 

t-, 
i6! & The&no door. 

j l i correct? 
Q Until you get to Waiting Area No. 1; is that 

A That’s right. When you get to Waitin 
I ii 1 as it shows there, there is a door, a large door, that % 

Area No. 1, 
ads 

i i 1~ to the cabinet room, and then there IS obviously the door 
: 1: 1 that leads to the Oval Office 

There is also a door that leads to the outside 
I :: i walkway that is located - as you go down that small 

r:~;tzz:;:~~ 
it is located directly ahead. So if you’re 

tty Currie’s desk, and you go north a little bit 
117 1 to that dark area, to the right of the door to the cabinet 
11s 1 room, there is a door to the right of there that leads to the 
[ 1 glwalkway, the colonnade walkway. 
I201 Q 
(211 A 

Okay. Would that be right there (indicating)? 
That s correct. 

Q Okay. That would be this little doorway, this 
I:: i little area right here (indicating), right before 
[24 lthe cabinet room that juts out to the right oft K 

ou get to 
e 

[zslarea. That’s a doorwaytotheoutside. 
reception 
. 
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III A That’s correct. 
[21 
131 
[II 
151 

Q 
It;cabinet room, is that typically closed or open. 

Okay. The door from the reception area to the 

I81 A 
Q 

To the cabinet room is normally closed. 

r:i;Area 1. isFat 
The door from Reception Area 1 leading into Waiting 

VI! 
ically closed or open? 
at’s normall open. There were times on the 

I :: 1 weekend when that door wou d be closed, so that the tourists 7 
[131who normally can go t~ughtheWestWmgwoutdw&~eable 
c 14 1 to walk into he reception area. 

I:zi 
Q Okay. We haven’t been doin 

fi 
oing to ask you to do it for the record. and t a. 

something, and I’m 
at IS. we 

[ 17 1 aven’t been markin 
118 1 closed. If we could 2 

which doors are typically open or 
o that. 

OlCStarr Page 50 to Page 55 
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! I iweekends tis sometimes oosed. 
(21 rThe witness marked the document.) 
r3: BY MR. WISENBERG: 

Q You have rnentroned that the door leadin 
I: i Wakway No. 2 to the Rooseveit Room is typically close % 

from 

16: A That’s corrti 
173 Q 1’11 ask you to put a “C* there. 
181 
[91 

~T&vvitn;~Er4B~ed&e document.) 

Q You’ve menhoned that the door from the Oval Qftice 
:~~Ccmplex. which contams the dining room, that the door from 
12 lthat to Walkwav t is t-mcal~ dosed. . .~. 

1131 A Yes. _. _ 
Q I’ll ask you to put a “C” there. I think that’s 

i ::ithe one you testified there’s a security lock? 
1161 A That’s aanect. 
ii7i 
1181 
Cl91 

~~~~~&a&ed&e document.) 

Q You’ve mentioned that the door from Waiting Area 
I:!fNo 1 to Watkway 3 is typica& open, Waiting Area 1 to 
122rWakwav 3: is that correct? .--, 
I231 
r241 
1251 

- A That’s correct. 
Q I’ll ask you to put an ‘0” there. 
(The witness marked the document.) 
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BY MR. WISENBERG: 

And that the door from Walkway 3 going down into 

Cl41 Q All right. 
A 

i : 2 i into the Roosevelt Room. 
Q 

I shouM aW&n.it;~~$~~;~;~y No. 1 

Okay, thank you. We haven’t marked that yet. 
(:i;That’s Walkway No. 1 up into the Roosevelt Room. 
r191 
I201 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~ d@==nt.) 

Q And I think 
I:: iwafkway No. 4 into the 

ou mentioned that the door from 
ca t? 

tt3jthe cabinet room - 
met mom. that’s the top teft of 

1241 
1251 Aa Yes. - that door is nomialty dosed. 

--- --- 
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A That’s conect The upper door - 
Q 
A 

Upper left door. 
That% correct And normath+ the tower door is 

. --, 
I141 
II51 
I161 
1171 

A Yes. 
- there is a doorway leading into something. 

i That’s correct 
Q Lets start with. what is that lea&to into? 

iisi 
1191 
1201 
1211 

A 
Q- 

That leads into a very small haltwziy. 
Al! right. We’ll call that Hall 1. 

~TM”~;s”E document.) 

i22i Q Andt~n-~~atd~r~p~~~or~n, 
t z 3 1 the door from the Oval Office to Hall 1, 

A 
you know? 

1241 That would be normally dosed. 
I251 Q All right. Would you put a “C” there? 
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111 
BY MR. WISENBERG: 
The witness marked the document.) 

131 

j:ldownward 
Q Hall 1, from there there appears to be a door going_ 
tnto another room. isi A 

lb! Q %$ is that room? 
A That room I would, for lack of a better word, call 

1; i the President’s study. 
A 

i iilmark rt “Studv.” 
Okay. We’ll call that “Study.” I’ll ask you to 

1  

(111 
I121 

~~~~~~~~~~~~ document.) 

; ;;lor closed?Q Is the door from Hall 1 to the study typically open 
.--. 

Page SO 
111 this - what’s this tile area just due north of Hall l? 

A 
I:iinto Hall 1, that first area to the rig t IS a bathroom. 

The first area - asp go from the Oval Qffice 

j41 Q 
[SjCorrect? 

Okay. So that’s a doorway to the bathroom, 

I61 A That’s right. 
[71 Q Is that typically open or closed? 
I81 A Closed. 

$fbath? 
Q Okay. Do you know if that’s a full bath, haif- 

1111 A It’s real a half-bath. 
1121 Q Okav. l? II ask vou to out “HB” in there for half- 
il3jbath. 
I141 
IlSl 

Cl Then is there another room - the other area - is 
i :7”; there anot?r a,rea that a doorway enters into off of Hall l? 
1181 

Q 
r:$e here - 

T&e’s an area that’s marked in white. if you can 

rzli A Yeah. .--. 
1221 

2 
- due north. 
I’m not familiar with that area unless it’s 

~~~~~spa~oft~~~a~a. Buti-yaukna& thatmaybe 
rzslwhere they’ve outlined the pantry, but I don’t’remember a 

rlldoor 
121 
131 
i4i 
151 
161 
171 
fB1 

kadin 
c? 
A 

AQ 

! 

Page 61 
into+lalhxaytfremtlmtarea. 

As t&t pantry. 
Oka . You’ve idenb8ed already VW - 

As the pantry door, rtgM? 
mars correct. 
Is it conceivable that that leads into - 
ttctcM - there could be - 

area where the mess stewards keep 

ou don’t recall ihat th&e’s actually a 

Is it fair to say you can? era 
i ::l pantry? You’ve placed the pantry door 

3 

place the 

y;y” the Ffilty hhere? 
ut you can’t exactly 

thank that‘s fair to say. I never really spent 
f191ttme in.the pantry itsett, so it’s a lii hardfor mab 
;;;;define b geography 

But asad on your know&&a, is it fair to say that 
t22jthe - if you know, that there’s no door from the pantry into 
1231Walkway 1. if you know7 

A 
i::!into the pantry. 

No, no, there is a door that leads from Walkway 1 : 

-_- ___~_ 
Page 56 % Paie 61 OlC-Sz% 
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Q Okay. And there’s also a door from the pantry to 
I: I]the Oval Offce Complex in&din the dinrng room. That 
[ 3 Iwould be where you’ve marked -F&m* 
[ 4 1 the dining room. 

That appears to go into 

I51 A That’s riaht. 
i61 Q Okay. - 
[71 A That - the steward has - there’s not only an 
[ 8 lentrance into the pantry from Walkway 1. there is also an 
[glentrance into the Oval Office -what’s des nated now as the 

1 loldining room, there’s also an entrance into t X3 re. 
I111 Q Oval Oftice Complex. 
fl21 A That’s correct. 
1131 Q Right. 

A 
I::;that dining 

So you can adually walk through the pantry into 
room. 

1161 Cl Okav. from Walkwav 1 - or out into Walkwav 1. 
A That% right. _ 

-. 
Q Do I need to repeat that? Or out into Walkway 1, 

Page 63 Page 66 

[ 1 ldining room into the pantry is typicall dosed? 
I21 A That’s normally dos eJ . 

Q All right. Since I don’t think - we’ve already 
i:iput “PD” there, you might want to put a “C just ht 
[ 5 l underneath the pantry door somewhere. a Me -z!- 
t61 
I71 

gpgpg~&g$g~d-~nt) 

Q 
!z!Walkwav 1 riaht on too cd where iou miaht exit from the 

And then I guess a little ‘C’ scmewhere in 

And Walkway 2 to Walkway 1, is that typiilfy open 

isi A 0 n. 
Q OEy. I think you answered that before we were 

iii writing it “~~tng;maxtJ$w document.) 

0 
I:flthe middle ri h&hand portion of the Oval &fide. Is that a 

Now let’s take a look at 360 in the Oval Office. 

I 12 I doorway tea In 
1131 A” ?,a&_. 

out Into the walkway? 

[I41 Q Is that typically kept dosed or open? 
I151 A That’s typical 
1161 Q Is that typical ‘): 

dosed. 
bdced. if you know? 

.-, 
rlolpantry. * - ’ 

. _ 
A Now, normally, if the stewards are there that 

I :: ito the pantry will be open, going from Walkway 1 into that 
Il3larea. 

I141 Q 
[lslsteward. 

Okay. It’s typically closed unless there’s a 

I161 
1171 Aa %%? %&. is il possible - and we won’t 

door 

i 1 a j speculate on this much more - but since you’re not sure what 
[ 19 1 the blank area is to the north of Halhva 
[2o]wnfident that there’s a pant 

1. are you fairty 

[ 2 11 as oppos$ to \Ct;kwa y 27 %scause~topkskke- 
door tha goes Into Walkway 1 

t221 
t231 0 Youare. 
1241 A Yes. 
I.251 Q Okay, all right. tf you bok at wr map here, it 
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t 1) tanks as if Walkway 2 oes into this odd-shaped - has a door 
[I 1 Into this odd-shaped w 4te area that we can’t identify that 4. 
t31you thank might be another pantry area. 

Are you aware of a door frdm Walkway 2 into this 
I : i unidentiftt area? 

A 
I:jother. so - 

I’m aware of one door into the pantry area, and no 

,QI 0 Okav so - 
x Wt%%%r that’s located. I mean, I think - 
Q All right. 
A Mv recollection was that that door was located just 

sur 
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--..I 

Ill 
[Zl 
131 

Q 
A 
Q 

Oh, h sorry. 
Oka I was asking about Walkway 2, thpug? 

You identhied four doors leading out of Walmv 2. 
i 4 1 the eagle. 
[51 A Right. 

Q But then you’ve got what could be a little - it 
176imight not be a door, but you’ve got this odd-shaped ama - 
181 A 
191 Q 

Right here (tndicatrng). Is that riiht? 
Yes. Do you recall such a door. 

LlOl A As I stated, it may be that they’re identifying 
[ 111 what is the entrance to the pantry as being - 
1121 Q In Walkwa 2. 
I131 A That’s righ r 
Cl41 0 
[151 

But uniqs it is, you don’t remember. 

1161 A Thatsr?ht. Q Okay. ou don’t remember that dcor there 00 our 

1241 _ _ A That is typically c-pen. 
I251 Q I’ll askyotrtoput an ‘o”there. 
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(11 A Thathwrrut. 
Q 

I:~Clinton_used it a life more than other presdents; is that 
And I believe you said that you thought Pras&nt 

[4]correct? 
A 

i : ; understanding of 
That was - that was my - at least my 

hito 
t7tNixon rarety used it an II 

although. for exam te, President 
had his main office owted in the 

ts)Otd Executrve Oftice Buitdi 
P 

. So there were other 
rs]presidentsthatkindofva~astotheirusadfit. Buthe 

t1o~argetyusadthedeskintbeDvalOfFrcaforhiswark. 
Q You said he atso sometimes wOutd do work in tha 

i::idining mom on that dining room tabte 
A Yes. For example if there was an avent scheduted 

I::ifor the Oval Office, where he woub make an announcement in 
rls]theOvalOfficeorgreetavisitingdignitaryoravbiting 
[ 16 I head of state in the Vat Dffice, then the Oval Dftica would 
1171bete:upforthepressforthateverrt Andso,therefore, 
I 18 ] them were a bt of cameras and wires that had to go through 
t1stthe Oval Mice. 

And so what we woutd then do is adjourn to what is 
i:iides. nated on this map as the Dval office Ccrmptax to brief 
tz]the 8 . resdent for any particular event he might have to do in 
t23)the Oval Qfhce. 

.Q 
!::iyou’ve designed as his study? 

Okay. Would the President ever do work in w 

- 
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t1; A 
[z~lt’s not 

I never saw him use the study for that purpose. 
to say that he doesn’t, but I never saw him use the 

: 3 ; study for thi at pu ose. 
14; Q ! 
I 5 1 studv for? 

ATright. What, to your knowledge, did he use the 

Q Now let’stakealookatlll. Whoorwhatjsto 
1 i ; the right of 111, 11 i being your office, the Chief of Staff’s 
r310ffice. 

A Yes. If ou can look at Room 111 there is a dooi 
I: 1 located at approximate y 3:O0. a little higher. r That door 
[ 6 Iwent into what I would call a recepbon area for m setf. as 
[ 7 1 Chief of Staff, and the Deputy Chief of Staff, Mr. ty ekes. who 
19 1 had Room 108. So there were several secretarial desks 
[ 9 1 located in that o n space there that is located between Room 

r101111 and Room 08. p” 

x-A----, .-.- 

A The study really has a lot of mementoes from - 
I: i that are very close to the Presrdent both from his time as 
19 1 governor in Arkansas as well as president. and there are 
[ 91 hotographs on the walls, and there are books there that I 

[ 13 liink, you know, he feels ver close to. So that he 
[ 1 I 1 enerally. I think, would use he study for resttng and for 
112 1 tnd of gathenn 

And t z 
his thoughts. 

en - for example, if he had to change - if 
I :: 1 he had to change his shirt or hrs suit because he was going 
[ 15 1 to an event or - for example, when he ve addresses from 
116 1 the Oval Qffice and he would have to cz 
ti7)he would than e in that study. 

nge for that address, 

[I91 a% 
I 19 I Relaxation? 

ou mentioned resting, regathering, changing. 

izoi A Yes. 
(211 Q Anything else? 

A If he was speakin 
I:$;from staff, he would go into the s udy and use the phone in 9 

to SOmeOne and wanted privacy 

[24)that area. 
(251 0 What else? 

Page 71 

xMAxrrq 

illi A I don’t believe we have a Reception Area 2 yet, so 
[ 12 1 let’s call this Reception Area 2. 
[I31 he witness marked the document.) 
1141 II. R WISENBERG: 
I151 JURORS: Yes. 

Everybody know where we are? 

[I61 BY MR. WtSENBERG: 

124 Iroom? 
Thank you. Then you said 10s is Harold Ickes’ 

[251 - A That’s right. 
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111 A That’s about all I can recall. 
Q 

I: i the staff, okay. 
So speaking on the phone and wanting privacy from 

So that’s all you can remember to your personal 
/ :; knowtedae? 
I61 - A That’s correct. 

Q What about from an hrng you might have heard from 
[i; others that the study was used fo ,y” 
[91 A I think if the President was taking a nap, he would 

Ill Q Al,l right. If you could just put under 108 “HI.” 
I21 
131 

gTM;rtn&ss, document.) 

Q And if you could put under 111, your office, ‘COS 

iiifor Chif o&t~@$;;a&~G~ document_) 
. . 

0 Is there even-a doorway from Reception Area 2 to 
I:{ 108. or is that just sim 

1101 A 

2 

No, tha P 
ly an open area? 
IS a door. There’s a door there. 

1111 
I121 t?%Y show it here. but there is a door there. 

r 10 1 use the study for that purpose. 
1111 0 But vou never saw him naooina in there? .~-. 
I121 A No, f really didn’t. ’ ’ - 

Q Well, what else? Again, based on - we’re now into 
i :: 1 the area of not what you saw, but what you heard while you 
1151were Chief of Staff. 
il6i A It was - as I said, it was,. I think, all of the 
[ 17 I things that I mentioned. It was really - rt was real1 
118 1 area that was kind of his getaway from the - I thin f! 

the 
the 

I 19Ioressures of the office, if YOU wanted to find some peace. 
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rl3jand that door is normally dosed. 
[I41 Q All ht. Now, thedoor- that’sclosed. 

Now the r-t% oar teadrng from Reception Area 2 - 
I iZ ; first of all woulcr you still call the area to the immediate 
I 17 1 north of Reception Area 2 Walkway 17 
I181 A That’s correct. 

izojl‘hat was eneralty what funderstood. 

I:: t here 
8 

(indicatin 
Thts area general area we’ve been talking about in 

[23)-first of all Ie a *. 
) what would you consider if you had to take 
sjust take a group of rooms and 

124 1 hallwa s. What woukl you consider the most private - and 
125.1 I’m no iy talktng about one room here, I’m talking about a 

.~~. 
(191 Q All right. I mean, I notice, for instance, that 
[ 20 1 there’s a little openin between the area due north of 
tzl)Reception Area 2 ad . 
122 11. 

krnd of what we’ve designed as Walkway 
But you’d still consider it all part of the same walkwa 

A Yes. That walkway kind ofwatks throug 
i::;then takes a right turn down to Room 115. 

K? there and 

I251 Q Okay. There’s no door in the area I’m talking 
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r I I general area that you, as Chief of Staff, made sure - you 
12 1 considered the most kind of area you wanted to maintain the 
[ 3 1 feast access and ou wanted the most privacy in terms of a 

e Oval office area, what would you 

tljabout,thatkttte- 
121 A 

0 
I don’t remember any door tt~?re, no. 
Oka . 

J4 
So we’re stitl talking about the area due 

I : i north of Rrpt$arsrea. Wafkway 1, correct? 
151 

Q 
~76~typically kept o 

And the door from Walkway 1 to Reception Area 2 is 
n or dosed? 

I91 A %at woutd normally be open during the business 

i? 
Page 73 

.i6j A I think the most important areas to protect the 
17 1 President in terms of his privacy would be following: 
[B )Clearty. the dinin 
19 1 that general 

room and Oval Qffice Complex the study, 
area 

[ 10 1 really his private 
~totheleftoftheQvalC&e,was 

uarten. the Oval Qftice and the 
1111 reception area. T reception area to a tess extent because, 
I 12 I I mean. obviouslv. that was an area in which there was . --, 
rl3jaccess: ‘. 

But in terms of 
I il I it was largely the Oval QfF 

rotecting the President’s privacy, 
ice, the study, and the dinrng 

fi6jroom area. 
Q And you feel that one of your accomplishments as 

I : i ; Chief of Staff was that you made those areas more private and 
[ I 9 1 arranged for less access; is that correct? 
I291 A That’s correct. 

1:: i based on 
what would you consider - 

(2 3 I consider t 
Staff what wouM you 

[ 2 4 1 let me exdude 
P&tent, exduding - 

I251 A I think the study. 

r9my. 
IlO1 
r111these to 

). And 1’11 ask you whenwer you designate _s. _ 
1121 
I131 
1141 

gGT d=umnt) 

’ tp 
)r from Mr. I&es’ mom to Walkway 1, 

t:&OUld ,.-. .,Fm-l, 
1171 A 

- Yrn or closed? 

[lelan openi 
I have to tell you that - I mean, thii map shows 

[ I 9) Walkway “4 
into Room 108. which looks like a door leading to 

. I do not remember a door in tiat area 
t201. Q Okay. Well, then leys leave it blank for the time 
rzllbeing. 

Whatistheroomnextto-itlookstiiearoomto 
i::ithe rfght of 108 with a partial room. or partial area within 
124)it 
1251 A Yes. 
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[Ii Q 
A 

Can you educate us as to what’s in there? 
Yes. This was the time that I was there George 

I; i Stephanop;ulo~k%%ze, 
II! And was he called Communications Director7 
151 A No. x, wasn’t. He was really an assistant. What I 
(61did was - he had been one of those that I had termed a 
[~lgeneralist and I made him an assistant to the Chief of Staff. 

Q Okay. So the bigger area, the whole area is George /E jstephanopulos's office when you were there. 
[lOI Yes. There IS a - if you look at that block next 
[ I 11 to - to the right of Room 108. there is a very small 
[II I reception area in whtch there was a secretary located in that 
[~3larea. and then his desk was located in the larger kind of L- 
[IrIshaped area. 
1151 0 ,,Oka 

&o 
Then in the larger, L-shaped area I’ll ask 

j ;iiyou to Put~~~~~E~~~~d~~~~t.) 

[I91 Q And then this would be his reception area, the 
tzojliile area you talked about where his secretary was? 
r211 A 
i22i 

That’s correct. Off of Walkwav 1 - 
Q okay. 

(231 A 
Q 

-there was a desk there and a secretary. 
Why don’t we call that Reception Area 3 

:::;just want to put “Rec..’ or however you want to do it. It’s 
and if you 
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t I 1 Reception Area 3. 
t21 A R. ht 
131 
[41 

g'M;yEg@g;pe document) 

151 Q Okay. Is there a door between 108 and Reception 
[6]AW 3. or is that just a - 
I71 A No, there is no door that accesses that area. 

Iiion this 
Q So the blank ink just didn’t go all the way through 

-whoever did this. 
1101 A Well, yeah, I guess I - I don’t know the date of 
[ illthis map. I mean. there are obviouslv chanaes that have 
i 12 1 probabfy been made. 

. _ 

Q Right Well, when you were there there was no 
I::idoor, corrqct? _. 
I151 A I nefe was no door. 
1161 Q Then 1’11 ask you to kind of connect the two lines. 
[I71 
t191 

~~$tntn’nara~t&re document.) 
I 

Q 
IZ&pically open or closed? 

Was the doorway from Reception Area 3 to Walkway 1 

I211 A 
Q 

That was typically open. 
Okay. Was there a doorway between Reception Area 3 

I::iand Mr. Stephanopoulos’s ofiia?? 
1241 A Yes. that was - I think they were shuttered doors. 
I 2 s I it wasn’t a hard door, but someone in that office could get 
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I 1 I privacy by dosin those doors. 

Iii 
Q 0%~. A.shuttereddodl 
A I belleve 4t was a shuttered door. 

I41 0 Were the typically left open or dosed? 
I51 A Normal 
I61 

#!hey were open. 

I71 2 %% right. 
he wanted privacy, he could dose them. 

0 And then the area between Mr. Ste 
[i ; office and the Oval Office Complex induding the d! 

hanopoulos’s 

I 10 I room, I take it there’s a doorwa 
rning 

betin those two? 
A Yes, there is. T f!e . re IS a very small - there’s a 

I :i ;small door that leads from the office that we designed George 
I 13jStephanopoulos. “GS.’ leading into the dining room. 
1141 Q Was that typically open or dosed? 
1151 A That was dosed. 
1161 Q All right. Do YOU know if it was locked or not? 
1171 A Idoiiotknow: 
1181 Q 

A 
Okay. All right. Are we all fairly on the - 
I should state for the record though that I had 

f :i 1 made dear to George Stephanopoubs thai he was not to use 
1211 that door for access into the President’s office - 
t221 0 Okay. 
I231 A 
r241entrance. 

- and that his access would be through the normal 

rzsi Q Had it been your information or your personal 
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( : : knowled? pnor to you coming on and t@ta.&g s&p, that rvs 
(- ‘did feel ree to walk throuoh there? L__~ ~~ ~- ~~ 
.i’ 
.- A 

Q 
That was my understanding. 

:4: It had been his office before when he was a 
i 5 : generalist? 
IF A That’s correct. .-. 
I-: Q Okay. You made him into a specialist. 
[e- A Yes, of sorts. 
15’ .~. Q All right. Is the area at 3:OO leading from the 

[io;Oval Office to the outer area. is that an outer area -you 
[ 1: : said the door is usually kept closed. You’ve referred 
[ 1~: generally to the outer walkwa 
1131 A That’s right. x 

as the colonnade? 
ose series of dots that 

[ 14 ; there are the colonnades that adjoin the Oval Office. 
ou see 

s o 
[IS 1 that’s normally called, you know, the colonnade walkway. 
I161 Q And would that lndude this area that seems to 
[ 17 1 more enclosed ‘ust to the right of the Oval Office? 
t191 A that’s right. 
1191 Q 
tzojcolonnade. 

All riaht. It’s all still considered Dart of the 

t211 A It is. There are some chairs out there that I 
(221 uess some 
1231 8. R 

residents have used. I’ve never seen President 
lmton use t ose chairs. But it’s realty intended as kind 

[24 lof - almost a porch at that point. 
[25!Used for that purpose. 

But rt really was never 

be 
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[II Q Okay. Can you just mark that area that you call 
(2 1 the colonnade - if you could just write ‘Colonnade.” 
t31 
I41 

~~M~~s$a&dt!e document.) . 

I51 Q 

I76$z?? 

Can ou tell us what the areas in the lobby - if 
u all can see ‘Lob y, r;N’ krnd of center left in our map of 

first floor-what would be the two area underneath the 
tslbbby? 
191 A The area to the -the first block to the left 

[ 1 o 1 below Lobby wouM have been a secretarial area. The area to 
[ 11 lthe right would have been my other Deputy Chief of Staff’s 
[12lOffice. 

Q Okay. Would it be fatiwltthat a -;-e&o-to 
I iii call the room to the left a reception area? 
1151 A That’s correct. 

::76iArea 4? And I’ll ask you to mark it. 
0 All right. Why don’t we call that Reception . 

t1s1 
[I91 

~&tn;~;$&~~te document.) 

Q 
i:T&e office of your Deputy Chief of StaR) 

And then there’s a doorway from there leading to 

1221 A That’s right. 
I231 Q 

A 
Harold Ickes is one of your deputies, correct7 

1241 That was - he’s in Room 188. 
t251 Q Right. 
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~:;inil 
A 

3c; 

That would havebeen either B. 

r3jthet 0 
and then Evelyn Lieberman would have worked in 

ce. 
Q- 

I:;it-whowastbe 
Oka erf’g’;nyu to put IEB,” and then under 

ox 
I61 
171 
IsI 
I91 

I101 Q She succeeded Mr. Bow&; is that corn?&? 
Ill1 A mars coned 

Q AII r$ht. And ma 
jijje$if!e doorway DOG.” for !Ffwec?putsomewh= puty Chief o Staff, just 

I151 . 
I161 

~M~$&,.!$&$$re document) 

Q Andifwecoukfakoputthatontopoftheword 
i :i ~7bor1V infoo;. 12, where you’ve said Mr. lckes was. 
1191 
I201 
1211 

~~Th&ne&me&$Jbe document.) _ 

Q If you know, was the doorway between Reception 
t:514 and Mr.~~v&~Frce open or dosed, typicalty? 
I241 
I251 Q And was the doorway, if there is one, between i 
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Page 80 

[ 11 Walkway 1 - I 
I z 1 Walkway pn c? 

uess there would have to be - between 

[31 

$ecneption Area 4 typ~celly open or closed? 

[41 0 Og 
[ s 1 to the north of Hall r 

This area we haven’t been able to identify 
, getting back to the area of the study 

[ 6 I off of the Oval Off&. IS it possible that that’s a closet, 
17 I or does that .ob your memory that that could be a closet? 
I51 I on’t want you guessrn d but just - 
t91 A It could be a closet, % ut I - 

I101 0 Okay. 
A - I just honestly don’t remember having used that 

{ :: jdoor - if there is a door there havin used it. 
1131 Q Okay. All ri ht. we’ll ave rt blank. 

# 
?e . 

From the Oval 0 ice Complex which includes the 
I:: ldining room there appears to be a doorway goin 
[ 16 1 it’s marked on the ma 

south and 
“Room 110.’ Tell us wha 

9 .‘. 
that IS, 11 

1171 
r 

ou know. And I can #I3 tell whether that’s inside or outside, 
[ 18 1 bough it has a room number. 
1191 A 
iIOilX?loW. 

I think this is referrino to Derhaos a mom located _. . 

1211 Q Okay. 

I::; Room 
A 

111 
Because to that area off of my office, which was 

where those areas - it opened up into the grounds. 
t243There is no room that’s located there. 
I251 Q Okay, all right. Do you remember a door leading 
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[I lfrom the Oval 0fhc.e Complex room out into the grounds? 
12 IThere appears to be one on the ma . 

A There is a door that g ads out from the Oval Office 
1 :iCompkxldining room area into a kind of a patio area that is 
[ 5 1 sometimes used by the President for luncheons outside. 

176;there? 
Q Okay. Is that typically an open or closed doorway 

181 A That’s closed. 
191 Q All riaht. Whv don’t YOU gut somewhere down below 

.~~. 
t131 Q 
[ I 4 1 a door that o 

All right. Did your door - did you adually have 
ned onto the - did the 

tl5joffices 111 EceptionArea2 108 &$~&$~~opoulos- 
tld]did you all have access to the grourids? 

A 
I :i i George Ste 

R 

I do not recall any access to the grounds from 

[ 19jReception 
hanopoulos’s room or Harold lckes room or 
rea 2. I did have a door that bad off of my room, 

I 20 1 Room 111, that had - there was access to kind of a similar 
121 jpatio area. 

Q Oka And is thatdoorkindofmarked b aline 
I~~jovertotheleftofl r 
124 jkft. right. center? 

l? Orcanyoutellmewhereonl1 r. 

t251 A Actually, that’s a window. I think the door is 
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1 I llocated more in the middle of that wall to the south of Room 
121111. 
131 
I41 

AQ Rqkztt: so right in the middle. 

I51 Q lt%esn’t look like it’s noted on the map. 
161 A That’s right. 

0 But there’s kind of a white - right in the middle, 
ii ia white area with a line through the middle of rt. 
191 A That’s correct. 

t101 Q That would be it? 
t111 A That’s correct. 
1111 0 Would that typically be open or closed? 
1131 A Closed. 

If you could put a “C” either on that or right 

;:B9;2: 
Q And then put “Patio” - I guess we’ll put “Patio 

I201 
1211 

k;“eM~tn~~rna&pe document.) 

I’21 0 And I’ll ask you td put number 1 under the atio - 
12 3 1 

E 
ou’ve previously mentioned the one south of the Oval Gf&43 

[ 24 ] Of’I’IpkX. 

I.751 (The witness marked the document.) 
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[II BY MR. WISENBERG: 
Q You mentioned that the study had a lot of mementoes 

I: 1 in it, the Presidents study- IS that correct? 
[41 A That’s correct 
(51 0 
16 1 mementoes? 

How was R furnished. if you recall. other than the 

171 A. 
[alon it to the ht. and then a couch located to the left as 

“ill 

I believe it had a small desk area with a telephone 

[ 9 J you entered e study. 
(101 Q And when you say “the nght.” that’s as we’re 
c I 11 looking at rt on the map here. 
[121is that correct? 

There’s a desk in the right; 

I131 A I’m sorry. as T 
I141 Q 
IlSlit. 

As we’re looking at the map, as you’re looking at 
.--, 
I161 
I171 

Aa l&;uing my best recollection - 

1221 Q -Okay. 
I231 A - as I recall. And then to the - as 
12 4 I that door. to the immediate left. there would have 

ou went in 

izsjcouch: 
Lns 

Page 84 
Q Oka 

i:ifor the desk and pu r 
. 1’11 ask you to mark - to draw a rectangle 
a ‘[r on It, where you remember it 

t3jbeing. and then another redangle for the couch and 
[ 4 1 for sofa, so we won’t confuse it with open and 

ut 5” 
dos ez 

151 
I61 

~~M;tnt;E~3a~lt$e document.) 

171 Q There’s a ueshon from one of the grand jurors. 
ISI A JUROR: dich wall is the sofa on? 
I91 BY MR. WISENBERG: 

[lOI 0 Which wall would the sofa be on? 
A The sofa would have been as you - the wall between 

i::iHallway 1 and the stu _ 

!::;study and the Oval 
Q Oka&$+edeskfs~ the 

il5, - 
CornDleX? 

A That’s right. 

;::;study? 
0 Okay. Is it facing that or facing out towards the 

[I81 A It’s faci the wall. 
Q Okay. % right. So if you were sitting at the 

[:z;desk. you’~be~ta$re wall - 
1211 
1221 Q - to the bval olfice Complex. 

K;there? 
Is there an indiiual named Steve Goodnin who was 

izsi A Steve Goodin. 

z 
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!I1 How do you s ell that as you recall, Goodin? 
:21 A Goo& G-o-b-d-l-n. 
:31 Q d-i-n, okay, all nght. Did he - I know you said 
‘I lthat you had ultimate line authonty over everybody in the 
’ 5 1 White House, but was he consldered to be out of your office 
‘6;in even a more intimate sense, the Chief of Staffs office. 
:7]or - 

illj - A That’s correct. 
Q You’ve mentioned the desk and the sofa in the 

~~~~stucty. What else do you recall bein in there, other than 
1 zolthe mementoes 

x 
ou have mentionJ? 

A collection is that there are bookshelves that 
if:;are located in thal gudy that woutd be on the wall located 
[23]between the study and the Oval Offi+. and that the rest was 
[24]just - there was nothing particularly distinctive that I can 
~2s~remember other than, you know, small tables and, you know, 
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1 I 1 usualty tro hies or awards that the President had received. 
I21 6 So there were some small tables? 
131 A I believe there were some small tables in there. 
I41 Q On which one couM place these mementoes. 
151 A That’s correct. 

Q There’s a bookshelf against the wall leading to the 
176iOval Office correct? 
I81 A’ That’s right. 
191 Q 

A 
Do you recall a rocking chair being in there? 
I think there is a rocking chair in there 

i i y ; approximately in that comer located across from what we’ve 
[:2 ldesgnated as the sofa. 
1131 Q 

A 
A comer across. like catty-comer or - 
I believe it was in the area that is as I said. 

i ::i located to the south of where we desi 
8 

nated a sbfa. 
(161 
c:71 

; popem.right of the stu y? 

I191 
1191 AQ PSLe. 
I201 0 Al! right. Can you put “RC’ for rocking chaiR 
1211 
I221 

~~M;~&~&lt$e document.) 

Q And I won’t ask you to put “BS” for bookshetf. but 
i::!if you could just put “Books,” if ou coutd kind of write 
rzslthat in where you think the boo & are. 
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i3i Q All right. Thank you very much, and we’ll have 
14 tsome more questions now that we’ve got this portion of the 
I 5 I map marked out. 

I121 A Again, as I said, if there is such a thing as a 
I 131tv~ical dav. Notmallv. the interaction with the President 

I131 
[ 14 1 

But if the event was in the White House, then wo~!d 

1151 he PresyenJ on the event, In wh,tch we would go over his P 
roceed ,tiom the foreign po!icy beefing to a briefing for 

[ 161remarks. lndlcate how the event IS supposed to take place, 
[17)and then normally at the end of that, brief him on possible 
[ 18 Iquestions that he might get if it was a 

Then if there was an event, 
ress event. 

I:i;the event in the Oval Office. 
P would notmalty attend 

I211 So I would on most days be with the President 
r22lthroughout the momin 
I231 Q It soun %. B 

throu h, you know, the noon period. 
s lake 

A 
was almost on a continuing basis. 

Yes that’s Correct, Usual 
i::ihave been times when-Mad Iogo back 3r, 

I me?eth$ may 
. L 

il41 Or if - as, for example, durin 
[ls]l woukl have to go up to Capitol Hill an 

the bud et battie. 
8 w&the meet 

[ 16 1 leadership on Capitol Hill and meet with other members of the 
[ 171Con 
rlelthey ad. 9, 

ress. developing strategy or discussing other issues that 

I:: ! afternoon where we did not have 
So there was usually a 

p” 
riod in the early 

hat much access 
. Now, during tha.t time, he might call me, -X-t 
to - you know, mght want to know about sometMg 

ad run across on his desk. 
Then, usual In the latter 

i:!ias I said, maybe 3:00 o about 6:00, here would b&brief&s F’ P 
art of the day from 
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r1lfor the President- W~WO&& ’ 
czlfor him, w if there was a budget that he had to be cnM*sffkcdalin%m nefed 
t31on or economic issue or any of a myriad of issues, obviowly. 
I 4 Ithat the President has to deal with, we would brief him on 
rslfofeign policy issues, and I would attend those briefings. 
t61And so we would have access at that point. 

il; to go to a rece 
Then, if he was to - after those meetings he was 

tion 
ts] normally wou lcP 

or a fundraiser or a dinner then’ I 

rlo~office to a 
not accompan 

ain continue to wo 
Ill 

M 
him and woudgo back to my 
on Issues. 

d 
[::!I said, if there were political meetings then when he 

then, particularly during the canipagn year. as 

r131rehmed from the event we might-there was a group thaw 
I 14 J met with him on politica/ issues, and that would be over in 
[ 1 s 1 the p,rivate residence, and that might run late into the 
1161 evenmg. And then,, obviously, I had access to the Ptesideti - 
1171 So that gives you at least a typical day. 

- Now, on a travel day, if I went with the Pm&dent 
[::&I a travel day then there were times when frankly I would 
c2oIhave access w/th him from the time he got ip to the’time he _ 
ititwent to bed. 

Q And if you didn’t, you would not have access ot all 
i::iwhile he was gone obviously. 
1241 A That’s right. 
I251 Q But either you or one of your - 
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Ill 
I21 A0 YG”es. eoutfes. So you even tried to staff it at that 
[ 3 1 level, that either lckes or Bowles could go with him when you 
I 4 Ididn’t. 

1131 Q Okay. What is your - I take it you are free to 
I 14 l continue this afternoon? 
I151 A I don? have a choice, do I? Yes. 

Q Okay. thank you. I needed to ask you that for 
~:76~schedulin purposes. 
[ISI 9* m going to keep questioning until the Foreman 
rlgltells me that; 
I201 THE FOREPERSON: You have ten minutes. 
I211 MR. WlSENBERG: Thank you. 
1771 
L--J 

BY MR WISENBERG: __. .__~ ._. 

i::leven 
Q 

[25itypica 9 
uantii 

Okay. So it’s almost fair to say that you couldn’t 
“I was with him ‘x’ amount of times on a 

day.” (/ou were with him almost continuo&ly in the 
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I 11 morning, and not as often in the afternoon, but - 
121 A That’s correct. 
i3i Q 
[41 A 

- frequent interaction. 

iiiil meetin 
That’s correct. And then, normally, if there was a 

t5) then I woukl be with him In the evening. 
~61 f there wasn’t, hen I would not see him from, you know, p” ?* 
[71perhaps 6:00 or 7:00 on. 

Q If you wanted to meet with him, what did you need 
I ii to do, typically? 

Cl01 A If I wanted to meet with him, I would qo to the 
i 11 j reception area. and then I would nom\ally ask Bettycurrie or 
[ 12 l Nancy if the President was occupied, and if the 

b 
indicated 

I 13 1 that he wasn’t. then I would knock and ao into t e Oval 
r14$ftice. 

i :z;sornebod 
Q Would there ever be a time when there wasn’t 

c 17 lthe r.O 
such as a Nancy or a Betty, there as a buffer in 

recep Ion area or Nancy’s office? 
il6i A No. I - - 

0 Well let me rephrase it to say while the President 
i:iiwas in the Oval Of&e area. 

A 
I::idistinguish the two. 

Duri%,“,e,;g;gd &hgeav kii$$ina 

r 23 I Hemreich were alwavs there when th& President was locat 
iii ithere. one or the Ott&r. 
I251 Q “There.’ being the Oval OftIce. the study, or the 

_- -.-_ ___- 
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I 11Oval Ofb Complex. 
(21 A 
r3ldesks. 

Yeah. they would be - they’d be located at their 

I41 
151 2 
[ 6 J normally both. 

k%k one or the other would be there. and 

On weekends - on Saturda 
! i i and sometimes Nancy were there on i 

normally Be 
tV 

Currie 

I 9 1 there were times when the 
aturdays 4s we I but 

- you know like a Sa r 
might not be there because’ it 

[:!;ise. And sorn&imes the President you know would be 
urday afternoon. they would be 

112 1 working in the Oval Office and at thdse times there wouMnY 
. 113 1 be. you know, usually anybody in the outer area. 

[illwhere 
Q In the outer area. You’ve talked about the area 

ou’ve drawn the desk due north of the Oval office and 
~16lrnarkefK. R as “NH.” Nancy Hemreich’s desk. 
1171 A Right. 

Q Sometimes that area that it was in was called 
1: i; Nancy’s off&? 
i2oi - A That’s correct. 

Q Would 
[g:;reception area, or did x 

ou also consider it to be part of the 

(r3lof its own? 
have more of an independent quality 

A Well. Nan could spot anybody usual1 
i::lthe Oval office. She woud - r would also - I mean, if 

going in to 
lsetty 
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(14‘ 
[Isihim? 

Q Where would that typically be where you would greet 

A 
I :4: if - if the President was running late on hi schedule, I 

Well, there were a number of places. Normally, 

[ 1s fwould actually o over to the pnvate residence. 
I19: Q %ka 
I201 A And might even take the elevator up to his r 
(z I 1 
I22 1 Rim over to the office. 

rivate quarters and begin to brief him there and walk with 

(231 Q All right. 
1241. A Sometimes I would be oing over and he would have 
f z s Ijust come down from the elevator so t&t-wewc&ralk 
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I 11 usually through this colonnade area. and I would even begin 
[z 1 bnefing him as we were walking. 
131 Q Down the colonnade? 
[4l A That’s right. the area. If he was on schedule, 
I sIthen, usually, right after he walked into the Oval Office, I 
[ 6 lwouM be the first one to walk in and see him and then brief 
[ 7 l him at that time. 

nodding your head, but you have to - 

1211 A Yes. that’s amect. 

-- 
Page 97 

t I lwoukl be there during the work week, 
Q Oka . 

r 
Now let’s take an occasion duff 

i:iwhereoneofthese adieswouldbethere 
the week 

[ 4 1 Reception Area No. 1. 
Youwalkinothe n? 

If the door is open’ from Reception 
I 5 v%xa 1 to @e Oval Office, wou!d you even stop and i 
I 6 I Bet!y Cume or Nancy Hemreich about what the Pres ?3 

uire of 
ent was 

17 ~doirg. or would you ust walk right in? 
A I mg 4 t not, although I always - I didn’t want to 

ii idisturb him if it looked like you know he was working on 
t lo 1 something. So my normai pattern Was to usually_ say to Betty, 
t 111 you know, “!s he working on anythi 

na 
in pafticulaff If I 

1121couldseeh1rnattheOvalOfficedes ,thenIwould,you 

L_. ,__l___ . . . . 
I181 Q 
1191 

All r$h!. You wouldn’t even be - 
A Thats right. 

I201 
1211 

AQ ---,zeded;.hat correct? 

Q Is that whether - you said that door was 
t:i;dosed. Would that statement you just made be true v&e 

W”Y 
r 

[24]it WaS closecj or open? 
1251 A That’s correct. 

Pase 92 to Page-97 
-___ 

oicstarr 



3228 

BSA Leon Panetta, 1128198 

Page 98 Page 101 

[II Cl Okay. 
A Now, I should tell you that on the door into the 

i:iOval Office. that is. as we’ve stated, located at 1:00 - 
(41 Q Yes. 
I51 A -that door does have one of those holes in the 
[ 6 Idoor in which you can look into the Oval Office and see what 
(7 1 the President ts doing, if he’s at his desk or if he’s not at 
te1 his desk. You can usually look in. And, normally, what I 
rslwould do if that door was closed first. is to look in through 

rlolthat hole. 
I111 Q Okay. 
(121 A I don’t know what they call those things, but - 
I131 Q Peepholes. 
Cl41 A Peepholes? Yes. 
I151 Q Would there ever be a time when one of the 
[ 16 1 secretaries - are they -would you call them secretaries, 
[ 17 1 administrative assistants? 
(181 A Yeah, assistants, I think, is the more proper 
tlsldesignation. 

0 Okay. Would there ever be a time when - are they 
f:!!more or less functioning as what is commonty known as maybe 
i22 jan exacutiie secretary& - 

i::;assistants 
A That’s right. I think they were really personal 

executive secretaries. They were functioning in 
t25]that capa&. I know Betty Currie was placing the calls 

Page 99 

[ 11 that the President wanted to place. She was - she handled a 
r2 I tremendous amount of the mail as well as the communication 
i ; j that the President had to conduct. 

Nancy was doing much the same thing, although 
~:~Nancy. I would say, was operatin as more of an assistant in 
[ 6]tha sense that she was normally ookrng at events and looking ? 
17 ] at the President’s personal calendar, providing him backu 

rsonal notes personal mail, communications with frian 
I:$?& type of thii 

s 
on 

s. 

Q &odd voi ever walk into Reception Area 1. and the 

Normally, I would say to them, you know, what my 

A 
Violating your own setup. 
Yeah. I mean. tha Presrdent’s entitted to a degree 

i::iof privacy hare. but obviousty they would never say to ma, 
tzs]you know, “Don’t gd in bed&s” - partiwbrty if I had 

Page 100 
(1 ]somathing sarious to discuss with the President, 

ISI 
Q Oka . Now what about thesituationwhere- 
MR. WlSENBERG: Just tell me to stop when #s - 

141 THE FOREPERSGN: 
15 1 minutes are up. 

Stop talking now. Your ten 

I61 MR. WtSENBERG: Okay. 1’11 ask the witness to ba 
(7 ]excused whik wa discuss what tima we’re going to be back. 
t 8 I would you St outside and then we’ll let you know. 
141 TH?WtTNESS: Thank you. 

I101 MR. WtSENBERG: Thank you. 
Ill] 

!?r 
Mess excused. WRness recalled.) 

HE FOREPERSON: 
[ ::iyou that you’re still under oath. 

Mr. Panetta, I’d like to remind 

1141 THE WITNESS: I understand. 
I151 BY MR. WISENBERG: 

Q 
~:76~thingstoclaarupa 

The rand jurors have asked ma to ask you some 
?e w pomts Number one, . . 

11 B 1 that among other things, the stud4 was used or napprng by 
119 1 the Presidrt. yFsyou recall that. 

r 
ou menboned 

I.201 
Q As a general matter you’ve testified that the door 

r’:ll from Hall 1 to the study was open; is that correct? 
I231 A Yeah, when I -when I would walk through there, it 
(24jwas usual1 open. 
1251 II All right. When it woukl be open, and you woukl 

: I! see it open do you know whether or not the President wourc 
! 2 lbe in there? The bees that you saw it open, do you recall 
[ 3 1 whether or not the President was actually in there at those 
7 : I times7 *.,- --- 
f51 A 
c 6 1 is, we would 

Year usually not. because what would be &wning 
be mowng elther from the Oval office to the 

[ 7 1 dining room or from the dtning room to the Oval Office. 
[alwas not - 

lt 
It was not a place where I normally met with him. 

! q]lf I - the places I nOrmall 
11 o 1 business was either the 

met with the President to do 
&I al Off~cs or ths dinin 

Q When he was nappin if 
room. 

]‘.!I 
r~z~typically be closed. me door from Ha I 9 

in there, you know, UJUU a 

I131 A 
Q 

Usually it would be. 
1 to the study? 

I141 All right.. When he was in there - I think ym 
~15~words were reshng. regathenng, changing, relaxi 
I 161on th,e phone when he. wanted pnva from his sta ?I 

speakag , get awaj. 
; ;; ; na&;fi; W$JM d typcally be clos~when he was doing 

i:z;doing son! of thework in!&ra where he drdn? want k be 
If normal , rf he was changin orna ping Q 

tzl]bothered. then that door would be dosed. 
our knowledge, w+n ha 
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(11 in there - som@nes I would go back to meet him, and I 
]z]would find&im m&study, and the door would be open. 
131 .~, 
(41 A So tivaried. 

Q 
tZ;woutdbecomin infromtheQvalOffrca- 

In other words these would ba occasions whsn you 

I71 
181 

$ &at’s ht. 
- to Hal 1 and then the studv? “9 

,9i 
I101 Aa ~~~%tuldyouever-intbkindofan 
[ 11) instance when you came in - you’ve alread 
r 12 ]Oval office through your normal entrance. 

corns n to ths 
ou’ve said tha 

r13]doorway frnn?the+atGfficetcliatl l~usualtydand. 
i141 A Yes. 

Q So &‘s take a situation like that. You don’t saa 
~~~~himintheOvalOf%e. YouseethedoortoHallldosed. ’ 
I 17 ]Would you typicalty have any problem with opening that doa 
I la I in that situabon? 
ii9i A Normally I would knock at that door. 
t201 Q At the hall door. 
1211 A Thtisright. 
t221 

2 ause at that point I didn’t know whathar ha was 
I::lbrthebathroomorrhetherwasinVK~. Butlwould 
t2s]nonnalty knock. and he might respond. 

4z 
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I&piilty not coma in. 
Q -+ncMyotldidn~?wqansa,ywwautd 

I31 A Normal that’s right. 
Q Oka. hd Itakeitthan itwouidbaevanrrxxa 

i!.isoiftha-Itakeit tx, n, th6re’s going to be almost no 
r6]circumstance where you would open that dosed door from ths 
r7]OvalOffiastoHall1,aty icallydosaddoor-therewould 
teiraalty never be a cirwms P anca when you would open that 

,:;;~~jetttng some response after hawng knocked; isthat 

ill] A maysc0~ect. Q All right. So we wouldn’t have a situation wtma 
!::iyou go to that door, you knock. you don’t hear anything, you 
114 ]walk in and find 

A t&nalty what I would do is I would knock. I I 
oursetf - that just wouldn’t happen 

IZ4Mdn? hear any response from the other iiie I might crack 
(17]thatdooropenalittlebitfromUleOvalOlficeir;tothe 
118]area and then addrass the President again, say, “Mr. 
tlg]President?” 
1201 
I211 2 
tzzlpoint. 

k%% I got - usually I’d gat a response at that 

1231 Q 
I241 
fzslin.” 

.A 
All . ht And sometimes you’d be invited in? 
Rig%! Or he’d say, “Just a minute,’ or, %oms on 

~_ ._ ____~_____ __ .- 
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Q 
ii i in five minutes ” or somethrng like that 

Okay, all right. Would $0~ ever be told, “See you 

131 A 
Q 

‘Yeah, “Just a minute, 1’11 be ri ht out.” 
iSI Okay. Ever any longer pen .J 
[ 5 1 like, “I’ll get back to 

than just a minute, 
ou later ” or five minutes or ten 

; 6 1 minutes or anything Ike that? y. 
A He was usually - usually if I called in and said, 

il j”Mr. President.” you know, and I would usually mention what 
! 9 1 the issue was, he usually would come out. Sometimes it was 

r :olfive minutes, sometimes it might be ten minutes, but it 
[ : 1 Iwasn’t usually much Ion er. 
I:21 Q Okay. & en that would happen - was there ever an 
i 13 1 instance when that would happen - let me be a little more 
[ 1 I Idefinite. Was there ever an Instance where ou shouted his 
I lslname or sooke his name. and he indicated t x at he would be 
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111 
[2: 

Q E$doyoueverrecaUatime-lwantto_ 
A 

13i 0 No ou don’t? 
I41 A No.’ tydon’t. 
I51 Q In answer to my previous question? 
(61 A That’s correct. 

0 You mentioned you would sometimes catch the 
ii; President rmin to work down the colonnade; is that correct? 
I91 T?la t% correct. 

1101 Q If I’m pronouncing that correctly. Is that the 
[ 11 ltypical way he would come to work in, the momin ? 
[I21 
113 1 the pnvat,“,s~~~~e,~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~me from 
[ I I 1 that colonnade path on the outside, even during the coldest 
[ 15 1 weather, and then usually enter the Oval Oftice at that door 
1161St 3:00. 

i :i ;a clock. 
Cl Okay. And you’re referring to the - like hands on 

1191 

You’re not saying at 3:00 in !he afternoon. 
L 2. l at approxi~ate~~v~~.yeah. tt s h doOr um to-ted 

i 16 jwith you in a minute or five minutes or ten minutes - you 
[ I 7 1 would usually wait in that area? 

;:;;ofhce. 
A I would - I’d close the door and wait in the Oval 

Q 
~:~~Dffice and 

Okay. You would dose the door between the Oval 
Hallway 1 and wait in the Oval Wee. 

t221 A That’s right. 
Q In that sttuation when he would finally see you 

I::;when he would come out, wasihere an instance when he was’not 
tzslalone? 
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[II A No. 
0 Okay. He would always be alone in that situation, 

I: i when you would Rnally see him. 
I41 A That was - yes, yes. 
151 0 Okay. 

A He would usually come out alone and he was, you 
I :] know either - if he had come out of the bathroom, he was 
[e 1 still putting his coat on sometimes. 
191 Q Okay. Do you recall any situation where he told 
lojyou - I’m talking about these &rations you identified, 
i I 1 just a minute, five minutes or ten minutes. Was there ever 
lz jsuch a situatton like that when he would ultimately invite 

I 13 1 you into the study after he was read 
A 

for you - to see you? 
Normally not. Norma I he would come out, and then 

Ii: i we would do our business in the Ova office. b 
1161 Q Oka 

f 
_ Where would he ty 

117 jthere was a typical rme when you might R 
ically be in the study if 
nd htm in the 
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[ 2 5 1 going to be coming out. 

would t at also be the typiil path when he 
!::iwould be heading to the living quarters. when he woutd go 
rzslback? 

A 
I::!back.- Sometimes he would gobackthretgbttratdoorfromthe 

Yes. There were usually two ways that he woutd go 

[I 1 Oval Office to the Colonnade. He oftentimes m’ 
t2jthrough the door in the Rece 
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ht exit 

.P 
tion Area No. 1. l? at glass 

13 1 door was often used to go n o the colonnade area. 
I41 Q 

A 
And that s a door we haven’t marked yet? 
I’ve marked it as dosed. Normal 

Iz;ctosed. I marked it as “C.” It’s in the Reception 
[7 11 in the comer. 

Xre . 
th,ttomr was 

ts1 Q Qka That top right - near the top right. 
[91 A That!s ht. 

I101 Q 
illj 

I no&%ere’s a V - a V-shaoe - 

Aa wsrigM. 

_- 

1121. - south of that other door. 
[13llS? 

Do you know what that 

I141 t That’s not a door. There is a window there. 

Okaty 
There s one thing I want to clear up. Let’s 

I:z;go back to the Ova office Complex dimng room. and you’ve 
; ;;: ;got the “PD” for 

A &sconect 
ntry door, correct? 

Q And I think we have marked as dosed the door from 
i:iiwhat you t~k~.~~to the dining room, correct? 
t211 

Q T’ 
::$;a doorway from t!!Fa 

Ity do&?+ And you atso said that theta is 
pantry out Into, you think. Watkway 1. 

1241 A That’scorrect. 
i25j Q Is that - what I don’t recall is. did you say - 

-” 
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t 1 j is that typically closed or open? 
I21 A tf the steward is there, that door is usually open. 
131 Q 
iri 

Qkav. If he isnot there? 
A Us&yctosed. 
Q 

/ : ) a T/O.” because thafs dependent on the circumstances. 
okay. So why don’t we put out in the hallway there 

171 
181 

~I.M~&g&p~ dO-=N 

tK;there. correct? 
Q Typicallydosedtfhe’snotthare,openifheis 

1111 A That’sconect. 
Q Now. in terms of his general movements - we’ve 

~:$~talked about when he came to work a the morning and when ha 

! : : 1 left. In te!? o~f?%?k?$d~!&\nswer. 
ii6i Q Yes, sir: 

bmes he would watk dorm 
era were some timeJ 

tzolthat-thatupperbuildinta&ereinthemao- 
I 19 jwhen he might walk throu h the colonnade that you see along _ 

I211 Q‘. Okay. - 
A - and he would access thro 

I::ithat Desk No. 1 is and actually 
(24 IOval Office, Those were rare, 
c2s1would do that. 

Page 104 t0 Page 109 ----~- ---- 
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Page 110 

And you all see that? 

Page 111 

Ill BY MR WtSENBERG: 

;:;wete talki 
Q North of Walkway0 is - that’s Fhe Desk No. 0 you 

x 
about wh?re the Sectet Sefvii sits. 

l4l 
Q EZi!~%%dufingtkida Itakeifhewouldjust 

I&v& around the-he wouldn’t 

I:;- 
during the day when he’s waUu~~,~!n%~e?&hite 

n==& 

Page 1!2 

bading into-nd then 
his usually means of 

rornotthepantrydoot 

Page 113 

Page 914 
I I I Of@!, dignitaries. and he bad to prtpare eitbr drinks or 

I:$E?% 
*know meetvadousmque6tsofthevisitom 

-~fb&dpzparethedrinksinth8pantryaivj . 
t4~thenbringthemhtotheOvalOftice. 

~~~~~ht~~P~*~~? 
a Sothestewanlisgoingtotypbnybethemday 

.E 
Page 115 
-to-~ 
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I I I at work in the Oval Office before YOU came to work that 
j 2 ] you’re aware of? 

. A That was rare that he woutd’sthat he would be in 
t: ithe ?a1 O%ce before 790 in the morning. 

Q Were there ever times when he was inthe Oval 
~~~Wmarea. or the areas you’ve testif& he usually was in 
[ 7 ! before - while you would have been at work, but before you 
[B 1 saw him for the first time in the morning? 
(91 A 

Q 
I’m sorry, say that again? 
I think you might have partially answered that 

I:?lbefore. Were there ever instances where he would be in the 
I iz]Oval Office or adjoining areas after 
I I 3 I before YOU had seen hrm for the firs 

ou were at work, but 
r. trme that dav? 

il4j _ A Oh, yes, es. 
[I51 Q 
(161 A 

Okay. Ti!at couM happen - 
That s right. He might -while I was still 

(171 holding a staff meeting, the tatter staff meeting, he might 
118 1 have come into the Oval Office. But normally they alerted me 
t1g]when he came into the Oval office so that I could brief him 
tzo]quiddy when he came in. 
(211 Q And theThe would bewho? 
t221 A 

Q 
“They” woudrbe Bet)reCunie or Nanr#~mreich. 
All right. Tell us a litt bit about the 

i::!House intern program. What is that? 
t251 A As best as I understand the intern program, there 
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111 is an Intern Oftice that operates that r 
12 ]given time there are approximately 2 &I% 

ram and at any 
306 interns that 

t3]are ass’ ned to various areas throughout the White House and 
]4]the Old&cutive Office Building. 
t51 I believe that, you know. the number can total as 
ts]many as perhaps a thousand or twelve hundred during one year. 

The Intern office setects the interns and ass 
iii the interns to the different areas. 

ns 
I was not - I was ‘p no 

ts]familiar with. nor did I request or select the interns that 
rlo]workedin~yof&e. _ ,. 1 

u ukay. And you sard as many as a thousand might go, 
i :: 1 through in a year. 
1131 A That is right. 

Q How many if 
[ ::;itsetf at any one time? I don 

ou know would be in the white House ~ 
J mean lib at 3 o’dock in 

[ 16 1 the afternoon. but at a particular - as Opposed to over a 
1; ; ~~~~~~~~~~~~d~~~~~e~h~~t~~~ g;Juy 
t I g] testimony on that. 
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I151 A Oh, yes. 
(161 Q Less than f&y? 
I171 A Yes. 
1181 Q 

A 
Less than twenty? 

I:,’ ! both - you know there are three floon there both 
Well. I mean the West Wing is a big place, it is 

1: 1 I underneath the ftoor we have st described ’ as well as a 
t22]third floor above it. so it is rea& difficult for &e to 
tr3]say. you know, where the interns mght be located. 

But, at least as far as I was concerned I - I had 
I::ivery limited access to interns and did not see that many 

LIlthere. 
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Okay. SO you wouldn’t have even seen in your area 

I141 A As I said, I - I discouraged the use of interns in 
tls]that area, because I have always - you know, I appreciate 
116 1 the .fact that Interns have the o 
r 17 1 Whtte .House. but work that IS .8p 

ortunity to work In the 
one n the White House is very 

[ 18 ]sensdrve and I was very concerned about the use of interns 
t~g]on a regular basis. Particularly in the Chief of Staffs 
r201office. 
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The’Chief of Staffs office. How about the Oval 
I::~Offtce, Oval office complex. Receptii7+ea t Study-the 
[II larea 
rls]most b 

ou have talked about is the most - as ai area 1 the 

rlslthere? 
nd of private area, how many interns, typically, 

i17j A None. 
I181 Q Okay. And then, unless there is an unusual 
[ 19 I circumstance like the shutdown, none in your area; is that 
r2o,correct? 
1211 A That iscorrect. 

Kiand 
Q When was the shutdown? Was that - was that fall 

- fall and winter, fall and late fall of ‘957 
A tt was Janua 

I::{recall correctly, that we had %e 
I think early January of ‘95. if I 
government shutdown. 

2 

Page 121 

111 Q All tight. 
A 

!:iand. I thiik thaj would have been - it was during the 
Because we wem in bud9at negotiations at the time, 

/ : ; Chnstmaa~,t$ &~~t$sd$$ .JJ;&pef;z5. 

161 
171 

t ;t$ve that is right. 

181 A JUROR: Ninety&. 
191 FOREPERSQN: Ninety-six. 

1101 A JUROR: Somewhere in ‘96. rnj (Simultaneous speaking bv iun%a.) - 
A I 

veah - no 
QUeSS thaf’S right IM sorry;yeah, 
- I’m somr. the etectton was rn ‘94 

p?.use - 

i 14 i it wis’ actually a 
r151So let me co rrecr 

ear afte%rarrJs that we had the shutdown. 

Q 
myself. I think it was January of ‘98. 

Okay. And had there been-had there been a 
I :76; briefer - lie one day shutdown the Thanksgiving before that 
I 18 1 January of ‘987 

~:~&riods 
A I believe there had been. Llhiim.llwere_&~ _ 

of a shutdown we had at that time 
Q 

1:: i went to work for 
All right. The - do you &II how many interns 

1231 A 
ou during that period if - I mean 

I &eve at most maybe two but gen&lfy there 
- there was One. My regular a&stat&s Jennifer 

~~:%nura. atid she was always on duty for me, so that if 

- 
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(11 someone was answering the phone it was usuaky one other 
(2 1 intern that was domg that. 

i:itime? 
Q Okay. So it could be as - as few as one at a 

I51 A That is correct. 
Q Do you know whether or not Monica Lewinsky was one 

1761of the interns who manned the phones during edher of the 
I 8 I shutdown oenods? 
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[il 

I2i $ \re%&other - IS there an extra level on - 
13 I not In the West Wing of the Whne House? 

A I - I believe she was and I didn’t - I mean. I 
[ :ijdid not recollect that until I obviousli saw her photogra h 
(111 as a result of the disclosures that had come out And t K en I 
112 1 recall that she was one of those that had come over for, I 
(13lthink. a couple days to answer the phone. 
[I41 0 Okay. 

A In that reception area, called - designated 
I:z;Reception Area No. 2. 
I171 0 Okay. A couple of days to answer the phone? 
I181 A 

Q 
That is right. 
Would that have been -would that have been 

I:zifirst time you met Monica Lewinsky? 
1211 A That is correct. 
i22i Q Now- 

A Because again - ‘ust so - for the record here, 
i::lthe interns that were assigned to 1 he Chief of Staffs 
~zsloffice, which would number, as I understand it. somewhere 

the 
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I 1 I between d-raps six ore’ ht at the most, they would work at 
[z lthe Old E&utrve Ofhce &ilding. handling mail in the Chief 
r5lof Staffs office. So I would rare y see the mterns that 
14 Iworked for me. 

[lslare spread out throughout that area as well. 

i:tithat lar 
On the third floor there are additional offices 

- there are three main areas. 
[IS IOne is 9 

ely contain the r&s 
he Courtset’s office on the third floor, the second 

I 19 ] large area is the L islative Assistance area, and all of the 
1201 Legislative people t at work under that individual. And then “;f 
121 lthe third area is the Economic area, the National Economic 
122 ] Counsel has its offices up there as well. 
I231 There are otherqbut those are the main ones. 

Q Okay. NowjustsowearenotaMfused a 
~::~particular map we have here that is our copies of LP-1, ‘at 
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[ 1 lthe top r@ht it says “first floor.” Is - is the - is the 

~~~upperlevelandbwer(evet-offto&right-bthemap 
[T)map we are took~ng at at least exce for the areas that say 

14 ]we have been dealin 
[ 5 Iwrth. are they - are 8 t 

with and the rooms we have been dealing 

[6]fil-St floor? 
ey considere - are they called the 

[71 A Yes the are. 
Q Okay. & they are actualty the middle level of 

/:/the West Wina? .-, 
I101 A -That is right. 

0 
I::ilf they call2 an 

Okay. And what do the call then the tower level? 

I131 
$hing other than lower &vet? 

ell. used to call it the basement. 
I141 Q Okav. And then- 

I 

I 

, 

il5i A The third floor. 
Q 

/:76;second floor? 
The third floor. So there is nothit called the 

1161 A Not real1 . 
1191 Q On the XI 

A 
est Wrng? 

1::; chucklin 
,;,,I i8 

) 
I mean that’s - that may have been m 

I’m sure the elevator 
- I us to always call it the thlr 3 

robabty says two, II 
problem 
ut 

floor. 
Q Okay. So the third floor first ftoor basement in 

!::lthe West Wing. And then there is another level & the - in 
[25]one Of the other wings, correct? 

OlCStarr 
- 

[4! 

i:; 

; To Gsponse.) 
ou said there are three levels in the West W 

16: A That is nght. 
[7i Q 

A 
Is there another revel in the East Wing? 

Maxwell. The First Lady’s offices are located over there, and I 
Yes. There are offices over in the East Wing. 

rlo:believe there - there are Legisla:rve - part of the 
I 111 Leglslatrve offices are located rn the East Wing as well. 
I121 Q 

A 
But is there an extra level, in term of - 
I believe there is. I am not that familiar with 

I ::;the East Wcg, g;r. I spent all my time in the West Wing. 
1151 
I161 A But r believe there is a second level. 
I171 Q You are not sa 
rlelthat extra -A on&at extra leve R 

‘ng the First Lady’s office is in 

1191 
,201 0 Okav. 

&7 

as 

.--a 

i:::0ffiCe. 
A I have never actually been to the First Lady’s 

1231 
I241 
1251 ’ -. 
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I11 MR. WtSENBERG: 
(21 has entered the Grand Ju 

Let the record refled Mr. LJdotf 
room. 

On the West - 8 
i:;third floor of the West Wing 

est Wing, which you have called the 

uIro 
u 

r51L 
7 . 

islative. something abo 
have got - ou mentioned 

Legislative ma & ers, is that 
161ca ed - rs that also called office of Legislative Affairs? 
[7] A That iscorrect_ 

t&Ice? 
Q Okay. And you have got White House Courts&s 

1101 
A [Ill Q That is r%h’- 
A 

And the amomic area; is that - Economic - 
1121 National Economic Counsel Area. 

Q Okay. Economic Geuneet-Area. -Andwtlvwenk?he 
i::;White House Counsel when you were there? 
1151 A The White House Counsel - 
I161 0 As Chief of Staff. 
1171 A - .wt?zn I was Chief of Staff were Lloyd Cutter - 
~t;~;there for an mttlal pencd. then Ab Mikva came tn. and 
,_<,-.-.. 
I201 
I211 
I221 

Q Mr. Quinn? 
Aa Mdayinn. 

i23j 
I261 
I251 

A Frank (sic Quinn. 
Q And was b r. Quit still there when you resigned? 
A Thatiscorred 

a 
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/11 Q okay. 
I21 A Jack Quinn. 
t31. Q . All right. From what you said earlier about the 
14 lmtems. what ts the - ts this - this area (indicati 
I 5 lthp West Wing that we have been baking at on % 

) of 
IS plan. is 

[61tttts what you would call the - is this known as the southern 
171 half of the West Win 
I 8 1 are aware of like so s 

or is there any designation that you 
hem batf of West Wing? 

191 A I’m not familiar with that term. 
you would call the 

i13j Q Again, aside frcm areas that are designated as 
I 14 Iupper level and lower lever? 
I151 A Thatiscorrec3. 
I161 Q Over on the ’ ht here (indicating)? 
1171 A Thatisco nez 

Q Okay. From what you have said about the Intern . 
t:89iProqamthen ouhavenothirqtodo-Itakeit-withthe 
(20) hiring of 2 in r 
1211 

;IS? 

tZ;intems? 
Q The - are you ty~icalty responsible for firing of 

A Well normalty the intern office itself oversees 
(::{tbe - you know. the behavior’of the interns, but it would 
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: L ; not be out of the question that if we saw an tntern edher 
: z -not acttng appropriately, or being out of line, that we would 
i 3: not take steps to deal with that. 
::‘ Q When 
: E : through the interns o 

ou would do that wouki you typically go 
f? 1c8 r&elf, ,or would you sometimes 

[c : just act even without doing - wrthout going through the 
j - : Interns office? 
I?: A Well, normal1 
: 3 :would - would deal with tha Y 

my Deput 
, and I 

responsible for personnel 
wou d tmagme she would Y, 

I 1: : at least Inform, or tell, the intern offkx what should 

A Yes, that is - that is right. I was not going to 
[ :i isay “Pfease ” to the intern office. We were going to tell 
I 19 I the& that a&ion needed to be taken. 
1201. Q And what is it that the interns typically do? Or 
12 I j ts thee 8 typical thin 
I 22 1 different areas of the % 

because they are in so many 
OB? 
ain. it can vary. But if, you know, for 

appropriately, or they were 
ey were yellmng, or 
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: : that kind of access 
I_. Q How 8xctusiv8 is it. in tears of - do you know, 
: 5 t for instance. does one out of every ten applicant make it. or 
; : : is it - 
15: A t don’t know. 
[6: Q You don’t know that7 
r-. L , A No. 
!s: Q Now is this the same as a White House Fellow? Do 
; a: they still have something called the White House Fellows? 

f.^? A No I think the fellowshi 
P 8 

pro ram, or the White 
i ; ; f House Fellows program, that is separa e an 
r 12 : intern program. 

apart from the 

113: Q 
[ ? 4 : that correct? 

That - and that would be far more exclusive; is 

~::~fellowship 
A That is correct. That is - normally the 

r 
[ I 7 1 have P”i! peep e t 

ram, as I understand it, is one in which you 
at first of all have - are usual1 much more 

[ I B 1 mature, have more training, and will 
[ I 9 1 a position for a longer 

actually 
nod of time. 

L assigned to 

Q The - t%y are later - they are - typically 
II?&ese Deoole are later on in their Drofessional career: is ’ 
i22jthat cdrrect? 

A 
t:: !who is workin 

That is correct. Normal for example SOmeone 

I z s 1 become a Fel ow. and then - as part of their. career B 
?’ at th8 State Departmen want - may want to 
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11 ;shouting or not acting in a mature manner, or - you know - 
rzlwere - rf we had found out that an intern had somehow been 
i 3 j involved with the local police, I mean those are all the 
f 4 : kinds of things that woukl concern us. 

And if it cam8 to my attention of the attention 
[iiof. as I said, niy Deputy, we wouM not hesitate to take 
17jaction. _ _ 

Q My question was -was not -was not clear enough. 
i!iVVhat I meant to ask you was what are the typical duties of an 

Jioiintem. 
(111 A I’m sorry. 

Q Is there any way - is that so broad that there is 
i :: j no way you can really characterize that? 

A I think it varies. You would abnost have to ask 
i::ievery office that is assigned interns what responsibilities 
tl6@8y gave them. 
117: 0 
118 ! intern? 

How long is the typical tenure of a White House 

A Normally my u~e~tandi~ is that it is for 
j:Ziapproximately a quarter:which would be. you know, thr88 - 
121 jthree months, three to four months. 
I22J Q 

A 
What happens to most of them when they leave? 

f23! Normally the interns - again, as far as I know - 
(24 Jwould return -the purpose of the intern program is to give 
12s Jyoung people exposure t0 the Whit8 tiOUs8, and t0 its 
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I 1 Jooerations. and then usually they return back to their 

i 2 j graduate school. or ~fess~onal‘school? 
A I thtn - aaarn e can vanr. but I think 

i G i typically they are colksge $e: * 
48: Q 
k 9 1 respons~Mity? 

I take it they an? not typically jobs of great 

ll91 A They certainly shoufdn’t be. 
fill Q They should not be? 
1121 A No. 

. t13: Q Are the 
A Yeah, I t 

more - are they more honorary type ‘obs? 
nk they -they are jobs that general 

: : : i involve, you know, moving papemork, 
ly 

or 
116 1 phones. Or, 7 

ou know, answering 

[ : 7 1 supervised. # 
ou know, dealing with usual y areas that can b8 
hat IS what one would hope. That certainly was 

[ 18 1 the case with regards to my oftice. 
Q Is it considered to b8 a - a 

I:: ! better word - for som8body to become a 
lum - for want of a 

&it8 House intern? 
-A I think - I thmk it is an honor for someone to be 

t$: ~seleded to work in the Intern Pr 
8 

ram, and then to have the 
J23Jopportunity to work in the White ouse. 
t24 1 honor for 

That’s - that.is an 
an one who is &8&d, and the 

t25Jas an honor I8 cause not many people ha ~~httov~~ tha -you know, 

1 I 1 development, and might enjoy working in the National Searrity 
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I 2 I operatton, as an exampl8. 
Q 

~$vith this, but I - I take it that polihcal connections can 
I don’t mean to suggest there is anything wrong 

[sJ la 
tsJl;ta!conect? 

a part in helping one get a Whit8 tious8 internship: is 

f71 A Well, I - I never S8led8d interns for my off&. 
[ 8 1 but I think it is fair to say that if someone who - you 
[ 9 1 know, was a sup 

I loJsorn8thing for a p”. 
rtef of the President wanted to by to do 

JllJsomething. 
anMy member that that wouM count for 

1121 Q You - and from what you said you would not 
[~~J~~l~evaluate t - assumin then? i5anev&atianOfen 
[ 14 1 tn em - and I don’t know tha there is, if they are only 
tlsJthere for three months - but assumin th8r8 is som8 kind of 
[ I 6 1 an evaluation like an employ88 wou Ii? 
[ 17 1 typicalJy do that? 

get you wo&d not 

II91 A No. 
Q 

tE!an evaluation of sorts? 
Except for the extent that ~ns~~~ or firing. 

A If there - if there is a quick evaluation then we 
!::iwoutd ad on it. But- 
1231 Q You would call that “an on the spot evaluation”? 
(241 A That iscorrect 
t251 Q You said that you beIiive you remember - a&ally. 
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(51 A That iscone+ 
Q And we have rdentifred the budget shutdown, I 

~76~beliive. of January 1996 and a 
;e.;around ~~nks~~~ of’&’ is th%%%%abr shuMown 

gh 
I loJshutdawn, workin 

But lbo not recall her doing the first 
rn the office the first shutdown. I 

tllj~~~ve~was~ second shutdown she worked there. 
Q All right- Do you have any idea wtmther or not 

i&tey adually do have evaluations of interns? 
I141 
1151 

$ ;$ux;,m8an, I woukl - 

A I wouktsu~ 
I :76fmean I think the intern o 
[ 1 a 1 how ititems were doi 

p 
that they would beoluse they - 1 

c8 would want to keep beck of 

r~s~knowledge that that i%e case. 
. But I cannot tell you of my own 

Q -tbwtypiQt*it,iny6 .. 
t Z! f knowled e for an intern to get a . 
[zzldirectly &er his or her internship? 

a~~~~ 

A It can - it could happen if the intern Was someone 
f :: 1 who was patticulady msponsibl8 and dii a good job and 
[ 2 5 1 wanted to - you know - to move on to a position. I ‘have to z 

-.- ~._ _ _.- -- 
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I : : use an example. 
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The office that I had on Capitol Hill as a 
i ‘3 ~Conoressman. if there was an intern who came in who was verv 
i J igood and did their job very well, that we mi 
i5:consrder that intern for - you know, for a JO .% 

ht very well - 

c 6; permanent job. 
For a more 

And I - I think that might be the case in the 
I ,’ j White House as well. 

Q Do you - so if I understand your testimony - I 
[ Iz jdon’t want to put words in your mouth, so correct me if I got 
[ 1: ; if wrong, it is not typical but it could happen if - if a 
( 12:person was ve 

A ?hat IS coned. 
responsible had done a standout job? 

[13i 
0 You have told us how - that generally you didn’t 

I ::iwant interns in this area, you didn’t want them in either the 
I I 61 Chief of Staff area, or the area around the Oval Office; is 
[ I 7 l that correct? 

A Yeah. I mean I - I maan just so you understand, 
I ::!I dii not want staff to be wandering through there. 
I201 Q Much kss interns? 
t211 A Much less interns. 

0 All right- Was - was one effect of your being 
i::;Chief of Staff that there was tighter rein on interns, as 
t24jwell as staff2 Is - 
f-251 A I believe - well, I mean. to the extent that we 
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rlwere - we were contrdling staff, we certainly would have 
r 2 lcontrolled interns. 

Q 
I i ; remember? 

There wasn’t a specific intern problem that you 

[51 A No. 
[61 
I71 

Were there -when would the 
[ jH~~~~~~~~t~~~~~l~.~en interact with the 

it be just on parernontal occasions, or to 
[ I 11 have a picture taken once or twrca durin their tenure? 

I:siwould take 
[ 14 ~obviously, 

A_ t~;p~o~$p;or&~;z; $e president 

if there were events on the. south law;. you know, 
115~interns mrght well be invited to attend those events, or 
( 16 1 perhaps even receptions in the white &use. 

But it was 
! : i 1’ President wouM 

la 
intera 

~w~rh~in~;;ons that the 

[I91 Q 
tzoloccasions? 

So, fair to say overwhalmingly on ceremonial type 

t211 A 
0 

Ceremonial. social occasions. 
Do ou recall any interns dunng the time that you 

[s:iwere Chief of Sta ffy- bemg fired? I want to make it - and 
t~ctlet me just say I want to make a distinctjon between fired 
tzstand transferred. 

__-_.__- 
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Do you recall any 
I[; iwere in an intern status? 

interns being fired. white they 

A 
i : I oftentimes 

Well I mean I recall that Eve n Liebermann would 
ou know, axpr&s concern abo uV erther a 

I 5 1 particular in em or - I mean, she was - she was a tough *r 
i 6 @iidplinarian and, 
[ 7 1 correctly, or if they 

ou know, if somco~ 
I$ 

did not dress 
haved inapprdpriatety she would not 

I B I hesitate to act to - vou know. to disdoline them in some .~, 
f9way. 

What that 
i ff ldefine all the particu ar steps she ma -r . 

articular action would be I - I cannot 
have taken to 

I 12 tdiscipline peocrte. But she would de L. 
i ;3ipaople on‘a r6 ular basis. 

rtelv discibline . . 
1141 Q gfhe - do you recall any being fired during your 
(15 1 tenure, that you were aware of? Any Interns. 
I161 A Fired ou mean beirg- 
11’1 Q Asked?0 leave the - 

g 
articular 
ut I 

i 22 1 can’t recall this artiibr instance. 
Q & you recall any interns being transferred from 

i::ione area physically to another while you were Chief of Staff2 
I251 A Do - I do - I mean. I do recall in this 
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[ 11 partrcular instance that -.that Evelyn Liebsrrnsnn exprssssd 
12 1 cnncam about the behavror of Monica Lawinsky. 
131 Q Okay. Now was that while - you know we have 
[ 4 Igot - were yuu aware that after she was an intern she took a 
t 5 1 

P 
ad posrtron in thus Ofhca of Legislative Affairs you have 

[ 6 1 alked about? 
A I - I’m aware of it now and I did sea her 

~~~periodically. I think in the halls, somehmas when I would 
[ 9 1 walk through the halls. So I - I had assumed that she must 

( 10 1 have gotten a job some place. or at least was still, you 
1111 know, operatin as an intern. 

Q gkay. But you didn’t know at the time that she was 
i ::; in the Oftiqa of Legtslative Affairs? 

(2 4 1 going to call lt the O-L-A. is that okay? 
1251 - A That lsfme. 
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r11 Q You all call it that ever? 
121 A I don’t think so. 

The - you don’t - since you didn’t even 

(6]West Win 
you don’t know whather she was in the 

OIA office or the East Wang OLA office? 
r7i A That is correct. isi Q 

t:i{gp u 
A 

Okay. Let’s talk about sincs ou recall - 

t i i lbvrth & 

I mean, I have to tell you, I -!would sometimes 
to the West Wang of the Legis ahve Office to deal 
e Legislative Assistant, the Presidential Assistant in 

[ 12lcharge of Legislative Affairs, and I do not recall seeing her 
[13Jup there. 

[I41 Q Monica Lewinsky? 
I151 A That is correct. 

0 Okay. You said that 
;:76;Evefyn Liibermann and - and - an dy 

ou recalled incidences with, 

j~sjme - let me strike that uestion. 
may I just ask - let 

I191 MR. WlSENB%RG: 
izo jeverythin 

And - and - I’m obfiiious to 

t 211 when it is % 
but the questioning, so when you - I would ask 
reak time if you woufd just shut ma up, please, 

tz2jMadam Foreman. 
I231 FOREPERSON: Oka . Iwouldba happy to. 
I241 MR. WlSENBERG: dank you. 
(251 (Laughter.) 
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- Evefyn Liibarmann coming to me and saying that 
[221&e dii not like the behavior of-of this indnriclual, 
r23jMonica Lewinsky. I - she didn’t use her name, ve 
tzr]at that time, she said. “There is someone that I don ‘y;. 

frankly, 
kke 

tzslthair behavw. they are hanging around.” Were the terms 

oIcs1srf Page 134 to Page 139 
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[I 1 that she use: ‘And they are spending too much time around 
[zlthe West W-g ” 
I31 Q Thfre y you said - pardon me for interrupting 
[ 4 ~you, but ye sazhet.helr. you mean she? 
i51 .-, 
[61 Q Okay. 

A ‘She is spending too much time around the West 
IiiW~ng. andAm g;F? F move her.” 
191 

[lOI A And r - I had complete trust in Evelyn’s judgment. 
[ IllAny time she acted. I trusted her judgment. I wish I had 
I 12 1 more Evelyn Liebermann’s working in the White House, because 
rl3lshe was sucfi a tough disciplinarian. If she saw somebody, as 
[ 14 1 I said, who was not dressed correctly she would discipline 
clslthat person. 

I have seen her discipline the press who if they 
!:7”1 had their cameras in the wrong 
[islwhere to place their cameras, s f? 

lace, I rnean,‘she told them 

[islthem to move them. 
e would go out there and tell 

I201 
f !?t?y&sted her judgment. and when she told me 

I$ithat I said Tie.” 
‘Q All right. She didn’t like her behavior, and/or 

I::ishe was hangin around the West Wang too much? 
1251 A Aat is right. 
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[II Q 
A 

Did she get more specific than that? 
No, it was basically that, and that, you know, she 

I:;didn’t like the appearance that it was creating. 
I41 0 All . ht. 

A 
What kind of an appearance? 

I thin just you know, the appearance of someone n! 
izihan ing around, and gawkmg, and - you know, trying to see 
c7lthe President 
I61 Q All right. Did she complain that - or express 
[9]concem that Monica was trying to be - not only to gawk at 

tlolthe President but to - to be around the President? 
Ill1 A Yeah - I think it was - I mean. her terms was. “I 
ilz jdon’t like her han in around.” 

I::lQf&e? 
Q Al?&. Did she specifically mention the Oval 

1151 A No, she never mentioned the Oval Office. 
I161 Q 
I 17 1 tryin 

All right. What kind of behavior, other than just 

rlslthe 8 
to - when we say the West Wing, I take It you mean 

i19i 
est Wtno. first floor? 

A -that is correct. 

!:yiother than 
Q What - what - other than that - what behavior 
ha 

rzzland gawking a n? 
ing around the first floor of the West Wing 
the President? 

I231 . A I don’t - I don’t remember her adding much more 
[241? ht - as I said, . . . I didn’t even recall her using the name 
(2510 the ndrwdual. There was just - it was enough for me 
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[ 1 tthat she didnl like this person just hanging around there, 
[zland wanted to move her out, I said, ‘Fme. 
131 Q Did she express a security concern? 
I41 A Secu’ concemwouldbeobvious but lcan’t 
; : ; re$ef;~r~;~~n$at. But. obviousty, anybody who is 

est Wing without any specitic mission or 
I 7 1 responsibility one has to be concerned about why they are 
relthere. 
191 Q Did {ou - diddou fear Fat - did s@ suggest 

rlolthat she heard an 
I 111 state that she ha dy” 

ng abo any particular - or did she 
heard anything about any particular 

I 1: 1 tncidents i?votvi?g Monica Lewinsky and the President? 
[131 A NO. 

Q Were you concerned - strike that. Did she mention 
i::ithat she had heard that there was a relationship of any kind 
[ 16 ] bebmXi MAOnicaNpwinsky and the President? 
1171 
[181 Q Did she have to say that? Would that have been 
I 191sornething. based upon what she said to you, that wouM have 
tzoibeen an automatic concern to you and Ms. Ltebemann? 
1211 A I - well, again. rt was more the appearance of 
122 I having somebody hanging around there that concerned us. And, 
r23lfor that reason. you know, we would act on it. Because of 
(24 lthe concern about the ap 
1251 Q Okay. P 

arance of somebody doing that. 
Te I us what you mean - tell us what you 

[ 11 mean by - and I know appearance seems like a &ear m - 
t z 1 but tell us exactly what you mean by appearance. 
I31 A 
(4 1 

We!l, let me - let me be dear. Obviously, in 
oing into this positlon as Chief of Staff, 1 was aware of 

[ 5 1 w e - of the rumors and the allegations that involved the 
16 1 President - beginnin 
[7land Paula Jones, % 

as Governor - with Gennifer Flowers 
an , you know, jUSt the general rumors that 

[ 8 1 had surrounded the President. 
I91 And, as a result, we took particular 

[ lolinsure that there was never the appearance o P 
recautions to 
the President 

I 11 I beina wdh somebodv. so that it could be misinterpreted. bv 
i 12 jthe eublic or anybodi else. . 
I131 Sq that, on trips. for example, if an acquaintance 
[ 14 Iwanted to dnve with the President we woukl say, “No.” If 
115 1 there was a female acquaintance who wanted to greet the 
[ i 6 ] FresIdent we WOUld Say, ‘NO.” And we just took precautions 
[ 17 1 like that because qf. again. the appearance, that we wanted 
[ 181 to protect the President’s office and pied his integrity. 

Q The - did you ever discuss that with the 
I :z ! President, doing those kind of thinas? 
r21i A Yes. 
1221 Q 

A 
And what would those discussions be? 

I::;lf we said “Look 
I mean the President was always very coo 

ou know we don’t want ou 
ratjve. 

Iz51was ah olb friend&at he’tiewfrornhis -& &$$” if’ 
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[I 1 Governor. we would say, you know what the problem is, it 
rzlcreates the wrono appearance and it shouldn’t happen.” And 
I 3 1 he would say, “Fhe?. 
I41 
151 AQ HOekZver resisted. 
I61 Q When a particular issue would come up about 
t7lgreeting somebody, or something like that? 
[81 A Yes. I mean, you know - Barbra Streisand wanted 
191to come in and meet him at a certain place, and we thought it 

~lolwas not appropriate, we would tell him so and - and he would 
[lilagree. -- 

Q 
i ::~questions. 

I realize these are sensitive - very sensitfive 
ifthere is ever anv-time vou warttto take abreak 

il4jf&elfreetoletusknow. - * 
FOREPERSON: 

I : 2 i time for us to take a break. 
Actually, Sol, now would be a good 

1171 MR. WISENBERG: Okay. 
1181 FOREPERSON: Ten minutes. 

IZiexcused? 
MR. WISENBERG: Thank you. May the witness be 

1211 FOREPERSON: Yes. 
(221 ttness excused for brief break.) 

Kiback? 
IY R. WlSENBERG: Are we ready to bring the witness 

(251 JURORS: Yes. 
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111 w: ..- TWPanetta;t wdrllblike, to remind 
I 2 1 you once a ain that ou are still under oath. 
131 #in WITFIESS: Thank you. 
141 BY MR. WISENBERG: 

Q And let the record reflect that Mr Panetta has 
! zi reentered and you are the same Mr Leon Pan&a who has been 
17 1 testifying here all day; is that coned? 
I81 A That ~conect. 

Q The - we were talking about this incident whew 
[ :iI Ms. LiebeFanh;;Fzs 
(111 rd 

our Deputy at the time? 

I::;COnect? 
Q Spoke to you about Monica Lewinsky; is that 

1141 A Thatiscorrect. 
I151 Q The - and YOU mentioned that there was an 
rlslappearance roblam- _ 

Ml? WlSENBERG: Let the record refiect that Ms. 
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‘I .-I A That is correct. 
;:I Q Okay. So you had at least seen this person - 
;31 
I41 

$ Ihat isn$h; 
aroun b this bme period; is that correct? 

15; A 
it: Q 

That is righ 

: 7 1 you, correct? 
By the time period when Evelyn Liebermann came to 

:B: A That is correct. 
I91 Q .You mentioned security. and, obviously, I take rt 

: ~olyou mean that rt - it goes without sayrng that that is 
: : I ; automabcally a secunty type problem: IS that correct? 
::21 A 
:13lhave - 

That is correct. You really, you know, should not 
as I said - either staff or interns, or anyone else 

: i 4 1 for that matter, located in the West Wang because of - 
! : s 1 because of securv, but.also because I think rt then 
! 16 1 undermrnes drsup me wrth regards to the rest of the staff. 

Q You sa 
Iiiigawking. either or bot X 

located in the West Wing, or located in. 

A both. 
? 

1191 
[ZOI Q Because a ain. you diinY want just people - 
1211 A 
!221 Q 

I didn’t -‘I didn’t want people located there. 
Okay. But there was -was there any particular 

;231concern with this individual, that you were worried for 
'24 1 the - any articulation by Ms. Liebermann. “I’m worded that 
izslshe might harm the President.” Was there any articulation - 
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( 11 West Wing and gawking - was there any other pman who f+qs. 
12 ] Liebermann or anyone else came to 
[ 31 appearance issue that you have iden 

ou about on this 
r- rfied? 

141 Is my auestion clear? 
i5i 
161 

; ‘A$other than this one instance? 

A 
/iishe did not - you know, if someone, for example wanted to 

Well, I mean, there were times when she would say 

[ 9 1 
[ION ! 

et on Air Force One that she did not want that person on Air 
orce One. And, I mean I can remember some instances like 

[ 11 lthat. where she - 
I121 Q Okay. 

A -would say that. and - you know - and that - 
i::;and I would-if that 

R” 
rson 

[ IS 1 responsibility I woul 
didn’t have a policy 

- I would agree with her. 
I161 Q Okay. Let’s - let’s - so she wouM - there was 
[ 17 1 at least - there were more than - there was more than the 
[ 1 B 1 Lewinsky occasion, in a global sense? 
1191 A That is correct. 
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III A No. 
I21 Q Okay. Now again, she was a staffer by this time. 
13jshe was not a - she was not an Intern. correct? 
141 A That is what I understand now to be the situation. 

Q And how often do you recall seein her Monica 
i zi Lewinsky? Let’s take - you have told us you - s#ike ihat. 
(7 1 While we are on this topc. let me ask you how many other 
I 8 1 instances when you worked at the White House did you have 
i 91 somebody approach youin the way that Ms. Liibennann did, and 

::~~inc!iiidual? 
! lo 1 sa there is a problem with a particular - a particular 

ii21 A Had Ms. Liebermann - Ms. Liibermann approached me 
::3jon others - 

. 
(141 Q Okay. 

- by that in which she would say there is - you 
Iiziknow. “There is a robkm with this indiiual ” Or “There 
[ 17 1 is a problet with that prson ” “This person is notdoing 
I 1 EI 1 *err job. 
t191wr - 

Or. “I don’t tke the way that person looks.’ 

I201 Q Okay. 
(211 A Shewould- 
I221 Q But I’m talking about the particular - 

i::iyou know. 
A Shewasagood-shewasagoodfintsergeant. 

1251 (Laughter.) 
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Q But I’m talking about the partiilar issue that you 
iii have identiir, the appearance, the appearance issue you 
I 3 1 have talked about. 

i : 1 any other. 
A This -this particular instance I don’t recall 

In other words, when? somebody was just hanging 
I 6 1 around the West Win 

Q All rig& But I want to be as precise as I can. 
i 2: IlThere is only one instance 
I $1 hanging around the West IrJ 

ou remember involving somebody 
rng,, correct? Other than Monica. 

t 1 o I But - but my precise question rs - well, first of all let 
:;lrme stop there. 
I”] Is that - is that correct? 

iIZ;if 
A To the best of my recolleciion - I mean, I - 

- I - the best I can remember is that - I mean I recall 
I I 5 I this one instance. but I don’t want to say that - you know, 
! 16 I R may Well have been that Ms. Lk?&rmann came to me and may 
I :T 1 have. referred to some others that - you know, in terms of 
I I B I walking through the West Wktg. 
:19lmuch -but thus is the one I clea 

or not, you know, having too 

1201 Q Okay. Now, a slg tly d&m&question. Was ??msmbe 
I 2 1 I there any other person you remember - and by definition it 
r221would be female - given the roblem 
123 lappearance problem about t R ilI 

ou have identified, the 
e Pres ent, I think you 

~24 ~menboned Gennifer Flowers - was there any other person - 
I 2s I irrespective of whether or not they were hanging around the 
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That is correct. 

S 

Page 151 
tiiitisdiffiarltformetopinanu~r,brit‘itwas-- 
l2lknow-itwasafewtlmes.andIdonrthinkitwasmore 
rslthan ten. 

Q Okay. Now 
+leissueofpeoplewho 

wo$J&~~$9!$~;o~alYY~ - 

ts]inVle-PvecallcditUleOEOB;isthatconed? T&Old 
17 1 Executive Ofhcs Building? 
181 A 

Q 
Right, that is corred, 

!illDepart.ment? 
The - is that the butlding that used to be the War 

111 A Tbatiscomsct. Still- - - 
il21 0 Years ago? 

A 
IZlwest of the West Wrna. 

ft is the old building located, I guess, to the 

ilSi Q okay.-Let’s confine it rtght now - let’s 
I 16jabout OEOB for a second - after I’ve had you tell us wha 
117)~-aandjusttalkabouttheWhiteHousc. 

yt . L 

I251 Again, just on the issue of empbyees or people - .* _ 
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f 11 ou know, employees rn the White House on a regular basis. 
12 I 1G ot an event, not somethin 
[ 3)to somebody who was 9 

related to an event. as opposed 
regu arty In the White House. 

id1 Is that ctear? 
I51 A Yeah. 
L81 Cl Okay 
17, A I believe so. 

Izll- 
2 2% or& that I think she worked in the 

(::;Democratic Conventio:, Haroid’lckes. But beyond that I don’t 
(24 1 recall all of her specific assignments. 
I251 Q And she is an old friend of the President: is that 

Page 155 
; 1: personnel action there cold be re 
i-1 Q 

~cussiom 
I don’t mean to be rghly technical, but 

for thati 
ou said 

) 3: taking action like that, do you mean any time you trans er 
14 ; anybody. or actron like she topk In the - spetically in 
; 5 j the appeafnce type of situation. the Monrca type s&ration? 
(6: No, It was more than that. I mean, any trme - any 
r - ; time Evelyn acted. ou know, wrth r 
: B 1 employee she usua ly rnformed me o 8. to make sure that I 7. “3. 

atis to dis~plining an 

r 8 1 would - you know, I was aware of rt and. obviously, I would 
[ : o 1 support her. 
I’ll Q There have been reports in the - Jet me 
[ :Z 1 strike that. The - was there any - after this decision was 
1 I 3 1 made - well, after this conveoation was had with Ms. 
I 14 1 Liibermann. YOU assumed that she would simotv take care of 
ilsjthe problem?- 

. * 
1161 A 

AQ 
That is right. 

1171 
flPl 

kz she tell you exactly what she wanted to do? 
L-“‘ 

Q 
IZitJ7e employee? 

&d she indicate whether she woukt fire or transfer 

I211 A I don’t recall. She just basiiltv said. “I’m 
r22 jmoving her out.” 
1231 Q All right. We are talking about Monica Lewinsky? 
[241 _ A Uh-huh. 
1251 Q Is that right? 
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[IlcOmfct? 
t21 A That is my understandin 
(31 Q 4 Going back many years. 
I41 A That rscorrect. 

Q Okay. Did you speak to - well, what did you do 
Iilafter Ms. Liebermann brought thus to your attention? 
i7i 
I81 A 
191 Q 

It - we woukf just take precautions - 
Well, I am now talking about the particular 

A 
Q %t Ms. Lewinsky? 

_-.______ .~__._. __ - 
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~~~~procedure to make sure that, you know, I was aware of the 
( 19 1 action she was taki 

Q 3. Wou she tell you about any empto ee workktg in 
(:iithe White House who woutd be transferred or fired 7 

; 

i::iaction 
A Yeah she - I mean she woutd - Jfshe was &king 

like that I think. as a good D& 
(24 I her responsibility to tet me know tha P 

uty, she knew it was 
i 

personnel. you know, 
rzsjmay be moved. Because. in the end, any time you take 

Page 156 

t11 A Yeah. 

i:iwhat. if anQ ~I~‘~~? 
- after she was moved out, what did - 

I41 z I don’t recall an fallout. 
Q Okay. 

IZilbeen moved?. 
Did any g ody ever ask you, Why has Monica 

171 A No. 
Q After Ms. Liebennann had brought this to your 

~~~attention. did you discuss it at all with tha Prestdent? 
I101 A I did not. 

Q Did the President ever ask you, dire&y or 
f ~:~indimctty. ‘why has Monica Lewinsky been moved?” 
1131 A No not that I recall. 

0 Dii the President after she was moved, and - are 
t : : i you aware where she was mov&? 
1161 A 

Q 
No, I wasn’t 
Okay. So you wouldn’t be aware that she - before 

i : i ~she went to the Penta on she m’ 
rlv]Patsy Thomasson, in 0 B e OEOB 

ht have gone to work for 

1201 A I-I’mnotawareofthat 
Q okay. Did Ms. Liebemnn say anything about 

I~~~denyinghera-,den 
123)Was moved 

Monica U&sky aazss after she 

124lwestwi 3 
accesStO--fe SJUStSaythefintffIXXofthe v* 

t251 n% I don’t remember that. You know, that she said 

e 
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take appropriate measures to make &e that that 

ou - I asked tha question kind of 
e West wing, would that - 

I don’t recall her speakino 8s to what partiilar i~sistep shewas goi totake. . - ’ 
Q d knowing Evelyn Liekrmann and knowing whaf yo 

~~76l)expeued of her, and what she expected of you, ‘are you saying 
I 18 Ithat you mxrkf have expeded her to make sure that this 

rson simpty wouklflY4iR&3:-wayi?a&4f+tHtewkik, 
I::; ouse? Fis 

-. 

1211 
A rh*DTt Q You~n~~thatyou~~go~a-~~u~. 

!z$&pen that an intern couid go straight fmm the internship 
124 Jinto a White House staff .ob rf they had -were 
t25jextraordinariJy responsrb and had done a good job. Do you 4 .i _ 

-_ .~. - _ -.---- 
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c :. recall that? 
[2: A Yes. 

0 
i :; Lewinsky was considered to have done when she was an intern? 

Do you have any idea how good of a job Monrca 

(5‘ A Not realty. I mean I - she - she did a pretty 
[ 6;good job, as I recall, you know, handlin 
I7:not - rt wasn’t easy particularlv durina a 

the phones. It is 
t e shutdown 

[II 
I’1 
17, 
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A Tha! is - 
0 Is that correct? 
A - correct. 

, - 1  

Q 
I”siword gawking. 

Okay. Would YOU we us your interpretation of the 

A 
i76jand. you know, in a way looking around. trying to, you know, 

I think just. YOU know. krnd of standing around 

[ 8 1 catch somebod ‘s eye. 
!91 Q 

A 
Trying to catch somebody’s eye? 

iiy;definition - (lau hter). 
That IS right.. There has got to be a dictionary 

I121 Q 2nd - pardon me just a minute. 
I131 A Sure. 
(141 Bnef pause.) 

i:iiyou know’ 

Let’s 
I :z;said that you first me Ms. Lewinsky during the January 1996 9 

o back for just a second and talk about you 

jl7)govemment shutdown; is that correct? 
A That was - that was m first recollection of - 
- it is my only recoltection o her. 7 

1201 Q That is your only recollection of her? 
[211 A Yeah. I mean, was - 
j22l AQ Okay. 

-when she -when she wodusd there in the office. 
I::;As.l said, I think I did see her periodically if I was 
jzslwaking. you know.inthe comcfors,lmight seeber. But-1 

[ 9 : because we had alirge number of dlls comin 
:9:she did that, you know. with, I think, pretty g oo% 

in. So she - 

[ i o I capability. 
(11: But beyond that, I ‘ust - I did not follow the 
I 1: J interns that closely to - you I, 
[ 13!capabilities. 

now - to really view their 

Q Nothing that you recall as being standout about her 
IKiintern performance? 
1161 A That is correct. 
1171 Q If she had been caught gawki? when she was an 
[I 8 1 intern. would you have allowed her o have a s aff job rn 
r1910lA? 
1201 A No. 
I211 Q What do you know about Jot - a lady known as 
[ 22 1 Jocelyn Jolley? 
[231 A 

Does that ring a bell? 
No, it doesn’t. 

0 
I::isupervisor of Ms. Lewinsky in the Oftice of Legislabve 

Do you know whether or not she might have been the 
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[I IAffairs? 
[21 A I do not know that. 

Q Do you know anything about any other individual 
I:ibeing transferred out at the same time that Monica Lewinsky 
j5)was. 
[61 A Not that I recall. 

Q 
/z i because of not 

Do you recall anybody being disciplined in any way 
have 

191 A No, I on’t. rz 
controlled Ms. Lewinsky? 

j101 Q You have heard about the - have you heard some of 
[ 111 the reports that have been going out in the media 4n the last 
(12 )few days, about an incident in a movie theaten 
1131 A I have heard those reports. 
II41 Q In fact, there have been, I believe, denials issued 
1151at least on your behalf, and Ms. Liebermann’s behalf, by the 
[ i 6 1 White House; is that correct? 
1171 A That is correct. We were - we were asked if that 
I 19jwas true, and we indicated that was not true. 

Q And I believe the stories are that - I think 
i:iithere are many versions of the story by now but I think the 
12 1) story is that some kind of an Aide, somewh&e or Secret 
t22jService Agent or Aide, saw the President and Ms. Lewinsky 

t241a~ 8 
a tz3je 
t 

ed In intimate behavior, or intimate sexual behavior, 
at somehow it got reported to you and/or Ms. 

r25)Lisbennann. 
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I11 Is that more or Lws how you heard it? 
I.71 A That is what I have heard. 
131 Q Okay. 
I41 A In terms of the rumor. 
I51 Q And as it applies to you, is it - is that true in 
[ 6 1 any way, shape or fomr? 
(71 A 
I 8 I agent had 

that is not true. I can assure you if - if an 
told me, or I had been informed of an instance like 

[ 9 Ithat. that I would not only remember it but I would take it 
I 1 o I up with the President. 
1111 .Q 
I 1 z I to say until 

Okay. And you dkln’t - you didn’t - is it safe 

d 
ou 

I 13 1 never hea 
heard the rumor over the last few days you 

a rumor to such effect? 
I141 A That is correct. 

Q You didn? hear lt firsthand, secondhand. third 
i ::1’hand, eigh~senthohand - 
1171 
I181 -iithatcorrect? 
1191 2 No. 
I201 Q No, it is correct that ou didn’t hear it? 
I211 A No, lt is correct that r did not hear that. 
1221 Q All right. The incident-the only incident you 
I 2 3 I recatl with respect to Monica Lewins 

% t24 Icoming to you on this appearance pro 
is Evelyn Liibermann 

[ 2 5 1 problem? 
lem. thrs gawking 
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111- I - it was not that often. 
121 
131 

AQ 
But that was my only - 

Okay. And t believe you sard - 
- recollecbon - 

I41 Q - you saw her - recollection? You said that 
t5)was - 
161 A Yeah, that was - 
j71 - your recollection? 
181 AQ 

Q 
- m only recollection 

191 
rioi 

I cu?vou off. vour last Dart of - 
Al’ms6rry.~~ ’ 
Q So - and I beliive you testified you saw her, she 

1:: !was there for a period of a couple of days during the 
j13)shutdown mannin phones; islhat correct? 
[I41 A Th& ripht. 
1151 0 
r16lour mao? 

And tha would have been in Reception Area 2, on 

ii7j ’ A That is correct. There are a number of desks in 
r191Reception Area 2. I don’t want to - if I start drawi 
tl9)there.wonY be an 
t201(ust “9h ?’ . 

hrng left of the Reception Area 7 _ w 

~21 J here 
ht outside he door Into Room 111 there ls a desk 
at normally ls the indivkfual who answers phone, and 

r22)that would have been at the approxknate locat& where she 
t23)was located. 
1241 Q Did you know anything about a - strike that 
I251 After this occasion. you sard you saw her between 

At 
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tl)the tlrne that - let’s -iet’stry% gRThefimeframe. 
t2)You said you .saw.her a few more times after the budget 
t3)shutdown penod. in the corridors, as you were walking 
rctthrough the - 
151 

That is right. 161 “0 
A 

-walkways, and hallways; is that correct? 
t71 That ls correct. 

Q 
iiiwe were talkin 

Now that would be generally in this West Wrng area 

A 
about today? 

I:f$~as walkin 
%es I - I do believe thete was one time when I 

in the basement of the private residence where 
[ 12 1 she was wa kn 9. thro h that area. 

Q 
I::&zsldence? 

8kay.h what is the basement of the private 

;::;i& 
A I call it the basement I mean it’s - you know, 

- it’s the lowest - it’s the lower level of the 

%%e EaskWin& _ _klr*a_hu~~ 
’ ate residence. It is usually the halkvay that leads you 

~~$mderneath the We!t Wing? 
A I think that s right, it is ground level. 

1227 0 Okav. And - 

- 

otcstarr Page 168 to Page 163 
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r6lthiS is at around Level. as I recall. 
i+$oaInd ie$L _ _ I_ . _ 

I ne rim noor 15-t 
A” Thatisaxmct. 
Q. okay. 
A ThisfirStfloorkat roundb~al. kd,I 

vou-ifvwwa outthenoJtha& Bk ii;imean - yt% know, 

Page 165 

111 
t2J : No. 

A tio?ryti%?f was - I was rush@ around, 8s 
I~~in0mwJyusadw*do. i_aiUIcr . *pk”ow.y- 
[5JgOi~tOaneVWltOrQOi~tO8bna Jl& &ltfWSS- Was 
[6JWhlrl9 somewhen. 
171 Q How unusual woukl that be, to see a s@ffer. Office 
[ 8 1 of Legislative Affairs staffer headi towards tha - 
I 9 J p8rticulariy a bw bvel staffer. hea ?I 

I 10 i residence ama? 
tng towards tha 

I i 5 f fsnY - it k&t that. unusual. 
Q 

I:~jyoufindaunusullNIanywayatthe 
[19~8bOUtit. Or- 

bd you find it - well,g,~r#~y, did 

IZLoridng 
A We~,ifyhewasworking-lmean,tfshewas 

in the 
L”p 

tsbtwe of6ca and was tmnsii for 
masontha wouldnothavebeenthatunusual I’ 

j~~j~%ied to mall it now, because, you knaw, it can8 ct dc to 

Q tsitoneofthosethingsthatwhenahterevent 
$!.i happens that later went causes you to mcall earlier events? 

paSe 166 

111 

::1 

AbtccerMy does. 

6 - 
I41 A i%&iiIy does 

Q Aretheman oihertikethsfthat 
I~~othereventsyauhavemca &d? Youh8vet8~%- 
[?JyOU~id~~hefOfewtln?+ktheconid~,u~hPW 
JeJmenttcxred.ea~ttunthatwhanyou~~~~the 
191~wes. my ot@er - any other klstpnces, speafic btstances 

(101 atcometornmd? 
Ill1 
1121 

$ N&Th8t-thatmalty- 

* I::; 
A -Eta most I can mmamber 
Q -Gmanytimes without-w&outrdaenceto 

(lSJr8rIWllbe~Ospeclhcincident:hOWrJl8nytimesthat 
rl6Jmcall you - do 
1171 

A ~Bm~$b&~ ~$$o~&< 

; :;lphanes? 
9 Okky. That~inaddiitohermankgof’the 

1201 A Thatiscorre& 
1211 
1221 

2 gt f.. g5ent on the way to the maidence? 

I231 Q okay. soifyou8ddtwoorthmetothosatwo. 
l24Jmaybefourorfivebmes? 
l2Sl A t~~~at~-~t~~~ir. Asbcstas 
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JlJl can rec43llect it. 
Q Dii you aver sac her in the White Housg after MS. 

j:l~iabermenntoldyou~mrmovingherwlthatismoving 
I 4 I Monica Lewinskv out? isi A hro. 
f~~totheWestWnoama-letmestrikathat. 

Cl Ifyoutudfoundoutthatshewasangul?rvisitor 

P8ge 168 

t:!hercwt bthataf8irsWemaM * 
Q The-YmakasnosanSeinMrnsoftransferring 

lOUMZUV8lW-f 
iEVVtR4ESSz t’m&y. YouamtaNdngaboutoff . ‘. 

REPERSON: Yes. To take a shortan that way, Q ,, 

_._-- - __ _ __ 
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li;schedulin 
Normally, that discussion usuaj~y involve- 

13 I place. an i 
YOU know. we knew he was going to a 

wanted t0 take 
ar&rar 

f P 1 appearance, and we woul 8, 
recautions, again rega rng the rdp 
rarse those issues WA htm. 

151 As to other situations, I mean if someone. for 
!4lexample, wanted to see him and 

illyoU could - 
[?j THE WITNESS: No. no 
(31 FOREPERSON: - bring papers back - 
141 THE WITNESS: No. no, no. because I - I really - 
~511 conttdered that to be the private quarters of the President 
r4lof the United States, and I was not goin 
r7 1 there. I would o around throu h the ot a 

to go barging rn 
er end. 

(81 FORgPERSON: 8kay. Thank you. That is all. 
BY MR. WISENBERG: 

only exception to that was if we were briefing, 
r~,)instead of the Oval Office we were briefing in the dining 
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[I 1 room then we woukt use that access off of Walkway 2, to bring 
( 2 1 people into the dining room. But that was - that was 
r31deared by me. 

Q Dii you ever hear any rumor - any rumor of any 
I :i kind before this - this event broke a few days ago, any 
~6 1 rumor of any kind about the President and Monica Lewinsky 
r 7 I beii involved in a relationship0 isi - A 

Q 
No, I have not.’ 
You said that if you had - in response to some of 

[ :ilour questions, some of my questions - in&din one recent 
I I 11 one about what would you have done if you ha c? found out the 

p” 
rson had - had been allowed in 9fteen to twenty times to 

1 iii he West Wing - you would have discussed it with the 
114 1 Prasident. 
I151 Do you recall answering that - 

A No, I’m sorry. tf that -_ what.that was referring 
i :t\to was if soQmeo;; TV& seen the Preskfent rn the theater - 
I151 
[I91 A- - id some kind of - 
1201 

A0 
- theater incident. Okay. 
- in some kind of ccmpromising situation and had 

i::iinformed me of that I wouM certainly not on remember’that 
[ 2 3 1 I would have gone to the President and sa it- 
1241 Q That’s right, I stand coneded. As a matter of 
rssjfaa I think your answer was to the -to the question about 

._-__. - 
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I I @teen to twenty tiis you woutd have gone to Ms. Liibermann 
[ 2 1 and said, Whars 
131 A Tha is rght. 9 

oing on?” 

I41 Q Oka . 
[51 A Tha s . ht. Y 

As an initial step? 

Q And It~eitifshehadsaidsomethingtothe 
i ~~effect of. “The Pre&ent wants it that way,’ you then would 
{ 8 g have spoken to the President? 
I91 A That is correct. 

~:~~incident 
Q The - did you -getting back to the rumor 

the movie - movre theater rumor that we have been 
rlz@eari 

% 
*about in the press, dii you ever have any - any - 

f13fother an-letmeseeiflcanaskthisinahaffway 
tl4tliiratewa 

how 
1 ::lwith the President, about the appearance issue. 

many times did you have that v of discussion 

[ 17 1 have mentioned - bt me just ask you that way. 
I mean, you 

118 1 times did you have the ap 
How many 

I 19 1 President, related on - p” 
arance type discussion with the 

tzotabout or saw? 
re atect to an mcident you heard 

As opposed to you earlier talked about somebody 
~:~~going on a trip and you don’t want them on. Let’s just talk 
g 2 3 1 about me issue of based on any incident you saw or heard 
g z 4 1 about. or any rumor you heard about. how many discussions 
12 5 1 with the President? 

1251 - But it wasn’t that much. It reaffymnn’t. 
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ill Q 
A 

About how many times woukf that happen? 
I21 I don’t know, maybe a couple of times. Two or 
t3tthree times. Not that much. 

Q All right. Any particular incidents that stand out 
i : 1 in your mind among those two or three? 

A No. I mean if - if I had heard for example on a 
!76:trip. that he had 
I 8 1 you know, while ,x 

ou know, gone in a car with somebody and, 
was - it was perfectly innocent it 

tstcreated a certain impression, then I might raise it with him. 
[lolAnd that WOUM be the kind of thing I mrght raise with him. 

Q Again I want - I just want to make sure - I know 
i::!it is a sensitive question do I understand 
t13rwere two or three occasions to the best 

ou to say there 
#m 

[ 14 lwhere you approached the President afler learning about an 
t151event. on this a annce issue? 

A &inla 
!:761- that woutd have been the case. It wasn’t 

m - as best as 1 can recall, I think that 

tlelwasn’t that much. On the other hand, if some 
-&oukrww, t 

[ 191 bra 
mrg was 

~20~~~ President. 
M to me that would concern me I woukl usual& raise tt 

!::jlrelatlonship and I never f&tat 
Or if I - he and I had ~retty.stmightforward 

to mrse those k&Is of 
rzlrl~swswithh~.~lthouahtthevwere-thevwerea 
i~rjconcem. _ * 
1251 Q As a general mattet? 

Ill 
121 
I31 
i41 Q Any concern you had? 
151 A That’s right. 

Q On the two or three occasions that you remember, do 
i76iyou remember anythin 
rejwhenyou~ 

notable about the President’s response, 
htrtto rm? 

Uc,-h~~eneml~*ou.beve?-1rran.r 
f$~would say ?ou’re right. You know it shouMn have 
In 1 happened:” Or. I mean he - he neier resistedthe - you 
t 12 1 know. if t made that attttm, he woukt always be receptiie 
t131to it. 
I141 0 He never said the uivalent of ‘Back off”? 

A No. He never said “SB ack off irs nons of your 
~~:~busim?ss.~ Or, bbh. btah. blah. f& always &aid You are . 
I 171 ’ 

Tt 
ht.’ Or, you know. “Just we have to be -; you know. he 

[ 18 IS ouktn’t do that. that kind of thing. 
Q What were - to me best of ynnutrecdledro 

IZlrna best of your recoftecbi the best of your specific 
. n-.k?_ 

r21~scollecbon. tell us about th&e two or three tll. 
A 

IZjmean. to remember the specifics. It really IS. I mean I 
(Chuckling.) That - it is very diilt to - I 

tzctthink you know, there may hav 
fzsjmay have.ridden in a car with 

ne time when’ I think he 
aandwejust -: 

._~ _ .------ ----_ -- -._-_ 
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:;were concerned about the ap 
t” 

arance of that. 
-i And the only other hrng that we took - we wanted 

i 3; to make sure that he did not sta 
.i :San Diego. To make sure that t at would not happen, and it K 

at the Lawrence house, in 

; :! didn’t happen. 

-si rumor you 
Cl And that was based on some - was that based on any 

:c; 
have heard? 

A It wasn’t based on a rumor, it was ust that the 
: ii President of the United States, we felt, ought not 1 o be 

::; ;stayin at - at you know, a woman’s house. I belteve this 
. . . : _ _ lwas a fi er the death of her husband. 
“?I Q Okay. Now that was an - that would be one of 
i:;lthose future scheduling incidences? 
::41 
i:51. Aa 
; 16 1 it happened? 

TThhaetii/BPllll)inciident would have been after 

Li71 
$ 

i:ilafter the fa$ liEot at? 
lD?$?r~%l~ %rgd incidences 

[201 
Q Any other memories? A ain. I’m t in to confine 

is: Imvself to the occasions where you wou 5 have tal e 2 j-talked 

[lOi Q One, and who was that? 
111: A Well, there were two when I was there. One wss 
[u]Howard - 
I131 Q Pastor7 

I::~actuall 
- Pastor. Well Howard Pastor was there - 

[ 161 Staff. 
I think he had left by the time I became Chief of 

ut I had dealt with him as Director of OMB. 
Then came Pat Griffin and Pat Griffin worked me 

i :i; both as when I was Director of &lB as well as Chief of Staff. 
[ 19tAnd then John Hilley. 

Q All right. Do you know - do you recall when 
I:i;Hilley took over from Grifftn. rou hty? 
I221 A I believe it would 3, ave been some time in eartv 
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A 
ii;what the s 

I - it is difficult for me to recall you know, 
ctfics of that would have been. But that’s - 

i;lthose are he - those are the only ones that come to mind. p” 
i 4 1 But I know, you know, there are others but I can’t tell you 
[ 5lwhat exact1 
I61 Qy 

the situation was. 
Okay. Did the -who - how did you find out about 

- do you recall who would come to you on - again on these 
iiitwo or three instances, how you would find out. the past 
[ 91 incidences? Do ou recall who would have told you? 

LIOI A Oi it could have been you know any-any Aide, 
r I I 1or - nonnallv it - h miaht well have been the De&v who 
ii; iwas on a paiticular trif?. 

_ 
Q Okay. Did the First Lady ever speak to you, 

i i: jdirectly or jndirectly. about any of these past incidences? 
I?51 A NO. 
1161 Q About any of these scheduling type incidences? 
[I71 A No. 

0 Do you know if Monica Lewinsky got any special 
I ::I treatment when she was an intern? That is to say. was she 
tzoltreated better than the other interns? 

Not that I’m aware. 

- 
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i 11 revious answers would be the transfer from internship to 
12, 6 LA. rn the sense that I believe ou have told us that would 
r31~picatly be for a -thatwasnot&pi(;al,andifttwas 
t 4 1 one rt would be for a standout job; IS that coned? 
151 A I - I think that is correct. 
I61 THE WITNESS: Is this indicative of something? 
171 

ti9fe2 R IS NBERG. 
i :; kind of jumped out of my order and so I’m a 

Pardon me ‘ust a_mp’bte. We have 
b le to 

c 10 1 sure to everybody’s relief I’m going to be able to skip a lot 
f I 7 I of auestions. 

at do you know - what do you know about Linda 
I ii ;Tripp? Did you know a woman by the name of Linda Tripp? 
t151 A I am not familiar with Linda Tri 
1161 Q You have heard about her in &s 

p. 
last week or so? 

I171 A Obviously, I have heard about her in the news. But 
118 1 I - I tried to see if I. you know, even remembered her, and 
t 19 j I do not remember her. 

0 Office of Legislative Affairs, is that an office 
I:ilthat typically you would have had a real interest in, in the 
t22tsense of the day-today interest in? 

A I m not uite sure how L 
15:1broken down between t ‘t, f? 

islative Affairs is 
e East Wrng o ice and the West Wing 

[25)offb% The East Wing office may very welt be involved with 

1231%. 

IZZ;roughfy? 
Q The - right around the time of the shutdown, 
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A Yeah. It - tt may have been - I - approximatety 

Ill1 A JUROR: An hour. 
I121 FOREPERSON: An hour. It’s break time. 

MR. WISENBERG: 
I::ilet’s take a break. 

Canwe ~iet’sbreak. -Aitright. 

ilsj 
I161 
1171 
1181 

We have a quorum. 

: Let the record reflect that we have 
il9ia quorum. 

1201 FOREPERSON: Mr. Panetta you are still under oath. 
I211 THE WITNESS: I understand. 

MR. WtSENBERG: 
I::ihe is still under oath. 

The wttness has been reminded that 

1241 BY MR. WISENBERG: 
I251 Q You are the same Leon Panetta that has been here 

u” 
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tlltesbfying all da ? 
I21 A {es I am 

0 And it is &nceivabM that some of these final 
!:lquestions YOU might have been asked before. Maybe several 
~sjliours ago.- - 

I61 
- 6La”Ver.) he - so let me ask you as quick1 

iildo you ever recall seeing Monica Lewins X 
as I keow how. 

,;~;~rnt-&the~~~e~~ were Chref of SM~$e&%?.%nL 

The area that you have identified as the - on the 

.--, 
1201 A *Yes. 
I211 Q lndudin 
[22lbe opened out int? by t # 

the portion of Walkway No. 1, that woufd 
pse -those areas. Do you 

t231understan~wh~;~m saying? 
1241 

= I251 Q Do you ever recall seeing - you satd you never 
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Page la2 
[ 11 recall seeing Monica Lewinsky with the President did you 
I 7 lever see. to vour recollection. Monica Lewrnsky in any of .-. 
t 3 1 those area;? 
!4: I - I don’t remember her - seeing her in any of 
i 5 1 those walkway areas. 

0 Okay. Do you remember a specific room, other - or 
176; hallway other than what you testified to, where you would 
[a 1 have seen her? Other than what you have already testified 
!91to. 

A There, and its possible in Walkway 3. that - that 
I::imight have been In another lace where I might have run into 

~i~~~$‘-“b~he& ’ 
rha s in the - in w at I call the Basement of 

i;4jwell. 
hate House. That - that is possible, as 

1151. Q Now is that different from the other basement 
116 1 rncrdent you have talked about, the - 

A 
I :i ;(indicating 

Yes. That-that would be in the basement here 

h 
of the West Wrng. 

All right. Where you have said the Mess - the 
I :z; Mess is and some - 
I211 Here is tha Mess (indicating), that’s right. 
(221 

; 
other thongs? Okay. 

Let me ask you to help us resolve something. Where 
I$:;- you have talked about the Secret Service person posted at 
tz5lDesk No. 1. 
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[II A Yes. 
0 We have got some reason to believe that there might 

IGibe -.well, let me just ask it this way. Is there a Secret 
t 4 1 Service agent, or agents posted there in this Walkway No. 2 
[starea? 
[61 A Walkway No. 2? 
171 0 W.K.” yeah. 

A Yes. Normally there are agents that are located in 
i i; the Walkway 2 area. 

1101 0 
A 

Okay. Do you recall what - 
And these are what - you know, the -what I woukt 

i :: i call the - I mean the Presidents Secret Service detail, as 
113 1 opposed to_ the &form detail. 

Page 184 
Q Okay. The -were they typical 

I: ;mean either, you know, standing, sitting, what 3; 
posted - and I 

f 3 l Reception;reaN;T 
ave you - in 

I41 
(51 0 Nancy Hemreich’s office? 
161 A No. 
L’l 0 The Oval Office? 
is1 A No. 
I91 Q Hall l? 

I101 A No. 
1111 Q The Study? .--. 
I121 A No. - 

Q 
[ ::iCabinet rneetin 

The Cabinet Room, other than when there was a 
? 

A ?I o. The only other place I recollect the presence 
I :,‘) of agents would have been rn the colonnade area that - what 
[ 17 1 I have described as kind of a porch outside the Oval Oflice. 
I181 
119, 2 .--. ?&he there was an agent who was located in 
tzojthat area. 
1211 Q Oka How about the porch - okay, the porch - 
I221 fy - 
(231 

$ ;c~~it the porch. 

(241 A It is that - it is that area as you exit the Oval 
[ ~5 1 OfTice through the - 

Ia: Q 
!?I A 
13: 
; 4 jdining rooz? 
(5‘ A ,-. 
[sIthere. 
:‘! 
:!I1 2 
! 31 believe so. 

[IO]. __ .P 

Three o’cloa door? 
That’s ri ht. “rough the door to the colonnade. 
Okay. 4t nd cd I ask you about the Oval Office 

No, you didrt but there is no agent stationed 

How about Patro l? 
Not that I’m - not that I’m aware of. I don’t 

What,!s th_ls t:ng that looks like at attache case 
[ pi 1 nanate juttrng out or me Xucy ’ 
1121 A I don’t know wnat the hell that is. 
1131 
[I41 f"%%~ remerrzrer that. 

I:z;that. or - 
0 Is there any fund of a bay window, or anything like 

A No. No, I mean there are hedges -there are a 
I :i i number of hedges and trees in that area there 
119 1 the patio off my office from the Oval office 

that separate 
aiio, and - 

t20jyou know there may well be. 
tzl jwell be an air condiboning undbr somethin~that is there 

ou know - t ere could very 

t221above ground. But I have never paid that much attention to 
[23lit. 

1241 
[251 - 

I don’t know what that represents. 
Q Whenthe Presiden IS rnthe0vat Officethe Oval 
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iei d catch both of those. 
Q But it is safe to say that as he realty starts 

r:ziroaming around they are going to - outside of the areas I 
[ 1 I 1 have des’ nated they are going to follow him? 
I121 % That IS correct 

0 
I::!to be either in the Cabinet Room or rioht outside o 117 

So when‘tiera is aCabinet rneetin~ they are going 
I - - ,  

[151 A That is right. - 
I161 Q Do you remember which? 

i :i! is A If thei. meeting 
- if they are in the - if the President 

in the Ca rnet Room nonally they will be posted, 
t 19 1 you know, in the colonnade area - you will see some in the 

tzllteadingtotheCabinetRoomc%ofthe%~%eNdoqqr. 
tzolcolonnade area and there ma be one 

Q The - were you surprised to hear that Vernon 
I::; Jordan had - and I’m talking about his public statement now, 
I::r~~~~~~.~~~~cuy~~rm that Vemon John 

III 
171 

G 

Page 187 

2 Yes. 
Can vau tell us whv? 

i &$-I%%& I z I think you know Vernon - 
~:~Vernon Jordan is a dose friend of the P&dent. and someone 
t5twho is - you know, someone that normally. you know, ou 
[ 6 1 might speak to on a particutar concern that, you know, ): e 
(7 1 have because he is a, you know, a dose frrend of the 

may 

I E I President. also someone who. YOU know, generally has trrettv 

il4 jstatement? 
_ . . 

A He is a dose friend of the President and, I mean 
i iz i I - you know, I dii not - on a day-today basis I did not . 
[ 17 1 have that many dealings with Vernon Jordan. 
(18 1 know, saw him at social events. 

I normally. you 

~:~~Cabinet members in the transition penod, between t e first 
Andduria#atimathatu+were~~ 

121 land second terms, he was very much invotved in the personnel 
tzzlseledion process. And those were the occasions where I saw 
tz3lhim. 

So. in that regard 
I::: high levei rote in terms of -‘a IzF 

know he plays a pretty 
ut as high level as a 

1 
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fl! Q DOJOU rxall ~hethec cw not there is Nnning mer 
i 2 1 in the Pantry area. 
[31 A- I believe there is. I believe there is. Because, 
! 4 1 normally, he will - the stewards there will make sou 
rs:actuallr. r ou know - they - I think they have got no 

and 

[ 6 1 a smal s ove and, 
P* r only 

ou know, other ways to kind of fix food, 
[ 7; but I’m pretty sure here IS running water there. 
I81 Q I asked ou a series of - 
I9i MR. WISEN$ERG: The - I asked you a series - are 

[ 1 o 1 there any other questions along those lines you all would 
[ 111 like to ask? 
(121 A JUROR: 
[13lpantry. 

Is it possible the one portion is in the 

I141 Q Is it possible, based on your answers, that our 
[ 151 mystery space here could be the Pantry? 
(161 A It - well, you know, I’ve noticed. I mean, as I 
[ 17 1 said, I don’t know the particular date for this map, but it 
[ 18 1 could well.be that - I mean - that tha! area here that 
[ lslopens up Into Waikway 2 could be the entrance to the Pantry. 

I:fithat area, in that vicini 
I don’t know of any other door that leads off of 

other than the Pant door. 
1221 Q Okay. 7 he - so. in other wo r? s, you have got 
1231the - you have talked about the door with the Sea&y bdc. 

[241 A Right. 
1251 - 0 And then you’ve gal thePatitrydoor. viliichever door 

;: cr know about. that 

: - Vernon getting rnvoived wtth man 
‘: Q ‘I 

people at that level. 
And were you simf arty surprised to hear that he 

: L had been helpln 
I:: A 3s. 

Ms. Lewinsky to obtain employment? 

i:1 BY MR. BINHAK: 
11:. Q 
1::’ A 

And were you surprised there for the same reason? 
Yes. Yeah, because of his level, and as I 

i 14 described it that’s ht. 
1:s: M’R. WI&&BERG: Pardon me for just a moment. I 
116: jBBh&mawa~~~ / 

I :6 j conferring with my cc&a 
Pardon us. I apologize for 

ues. 
[19; BY MR. VVlSEaBERG: 
12c: Q You mentioned -when 
(21:two or three historical incidents that ha d 

ou were mentioning early the: 
caused you to 

[zz:speak to the President about the appearance problem, 
if - I believe the only name you could recall wa 

if:- t tha;g.rect? 
s& 

ou 

[2s: 
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Q Do you recall that one of these might have involved 
[I j- one of the incidents might have involved Kathleen Willie 

c17; A . No, I havinot. 
MR. WlSENBERG: I am goin to ask you if you would 

I: iistep outside for a few moments and - whi e I confer with the P 
[zo:grand jurors. 
1211 THE WITNESS: Oka 
[221 
[231 

MR. WlSENBERG: Ye$ay the witness be excused? 
FOREPERSON: 

I241 rtness exwsed. Witness recalled.) 
125! r OREPERSON: Mr. Panetta. I would like to remind 
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11 :you. you are still under oath. 
I-‘! THE WITNESS: Thank ou. 

MR. WISENBERG: Let he record reflect that we have r 
1: ia quorum and that Mr. Panetta has returned. 
[5i ‘BY MR. WISENBERG: 
16’ Q 
i?ifo( you. 

Mr. Panetta. I have qot a couple more rna~ auestions . . 

My first question is - and actually you don’t need 
ii;the map to answer this but my first question is is there 

[ ~o~searity at the Pantry doon In the sense of. nbmber one. 
[ 11 :are there Secret Service agents stationed rght outsii the 
[ 12 1Panb-y door? 

A There - usually in the area between Walkway 2 and 
i :: i Walkway 1 are a combination of Secret Service agents, the 
[ 1 s 1 President’s detail. and uniform Secret Service indtviduals. 
[i 6 ]the White House police. 
[17! Q You testified that - 

A So that the answer to your uestion is that 
~:~;nonnally that door is watched by-and tha hallway realty 9 
[zo~is watched by both the a ents as well as the uniform p&z?. 

i::ior uniform 
0 All %ht %ut is there - are there either agents 

olice stationed right at the Pantry doon 

~::~litUe bit be$nd 
Rght at the door, no. They would be either a 
- I mean. they are not standing right in 

[zsjfront of the Pantry door. 
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[ 1 Ithat is. and then you have got the door to the Oval Office; 
r z I is that correct? . . 

A The two doors to the Oval Office - or three doors, 
~:~really, I guess. Exterior. 

Q Now-butletme-as-as-intermsofdoors 

iiij - A- That is correct. 
0 Let’s start there and let’s talk about doors that 

!::!open off of hallways south. Okay. 
1141 A All ri ht. 
1151 Q You 9, avegot that door? 
I161 A Yes. - 

Q Oka Then 
! :i 1 it is the Ii&tie space o the rig r x 

ou have got the Pantry door, whether 

[islone that looks like a - 
t of the fireplace, or the 

[201 
I211 A0 That’s correct. 
t221 A 

- a map of Texas, somewhat? 
That is correct. 

Q Okay. Then your next door that opens southward. or 
I::;in this case would be southeastward, is your door to the Oval 
~zspfice; is that correct? 

4 
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111 A Off-yeah, orwalkway - 
121 0 Numbertwo? .~. 
(31 A - No. 2. 
[41 Q All right. So if- 
151 
(61 

“0 gkTye - those are the three doors - 

[?I A - thai I am aware of, that would open into that 
Ielarea. 
t91 Q 

[lolour myste 
So if that little panhandle’iih type area in 

room - which I have said looks a little like 
tll]Texas - ifrhat is the door then that room is the Pantry? 
I121 A That is ri ht. 

MR. WlSENBERG: 
i::ithe Pantry 

Okay. Any other questions about 
ou all want me to ask? 

1151 A0 resDonse.1 
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! I 1 there. any uniform officer in Receptton Area 1. Oval Offce? 
I?! A No. 
I31 Q 
I41 A 

C$z~y. The rooms that I had gone over before? 

!Sl Q Oka 
[6]would like you to IIS en very carefull -7 

I want to ask you thrs question agaln. I 

[ 7 1 somewhat convoluted questron so ~th~~~wa?$7%g about rt 
[s lyou don’t understand I will - I will m-ask rt for you. 
I91 And this question is to go up unttl - up until 

(10 1 now In other words, up until this moment In hme. 
Cl11 Have you heard anything, u 
[ 12jtime. as we speak, from any source J 

until thus moment in 
rch based on your full 

1131 knowledge, erther personal, hearsay, whatever, has caused you 
[ 14 1 to conclude that there may have been sexual actnnty between 
[ 15 1 Monrca Lewinsk and the President? 

A f& there isn’t. The only - I mean the only 
I f7”i information that is’in m 
I 18 Idiscussion I had with t? 

mind any way relevant was the 
velyn Liebennann. But that clearly 

[ 19 1 did not include any reference to 
tzojactivity. It was the a arance $?rtZ~~V ZZn. 

MR. WISE&?ERG: Let me ask you to step out again, 
I:: iand we might just come and - let me ask you to step out one 
[z 3 1 more time very briefly. 
[241 

rv 
itness excused. Wtiss recalled.) 

L25.1 OREPERSON: You are sbll under oath, Mr. Panetta 

xuuyuj --~- - ___ 
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‘1 went into the Receptron Area No. 1 woukl dally a (ittk br; 
.: rn the hopes of seerng the Presrdent. 
: Q I guess my question is. other than Monrcs Lewinsk 
: who was transferred out of the White House for dallyin 

:: around - or spending an excessnfe amount of time rn t 
.I where the President was lrkely to be? 

4 e ama 
._ A That was the Only occasion I was aware of. 
.; Q Did you have a sense that the reason she was ask 
: s to leave was precrprtated by 

;:: -oallyrng around or gawking? 
somethrng other than just rnerefy 

A That - I mean, that was not part of the discussion 
jII:l had with Evelyn. I mean I - I kind of - I mean Evelyn 
:;2-and I have a ve 
!;4 :something like, % 

dose relationship. and when she sard 
ou know there IS somebody that is just 

rls:standing arovnd and it’s - you know - d IS creatin 
tl6:appearanz. w17 kind of understood, you know, w 8 

a bad 
at she meant. 

[?7‘ 
ilJi A I .ust - you know, that - it wasn’t - there 
[ 19:wasn’t any ques 1. 
t2c:Evel 

Ion n-r my mind that - you know, that if 
n thought that there was a potenbal problem that she 

[zliwoud act on it. ty 
Q 

~:~~underlying 
Was there - was there really a need to explore the 

basis for the problem? 
t24; A Not - I mean. not as far as I was concerned. lf 
12s:shewas concerned that somebody was standing around and she 
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(11 THE WITNESS: I understand. 
MR. WlSENBERG: Let the record reflect we have a 

/:iquorum. The witness has returned. 
I41 BY MR. WISENBERG: 

Q I want to try varying to this question again. And 
f z; let me exclude from the auestion newspaper. newspaper 
i 7 j accounts, at least for my ‘question here. 
181 A Okay. 

Q You have - because when you answered the last 
[ :i jquestion you related it back to the Liebermann incident. 

Have you heard -have you heard anything, other 
1:: i than from newspaper and press accounts from any source, at 
[ 13 1 any time including up to the present, which. based on 
114 jeverhing you know leads you to - leads you to conclude - 
[ 1sljust o conclude, not to a certanty. but to conclude rn your 
I 16 1 mind that there ma 

ty 
have been some sexual activity between 

I 17 I Ms. Lewinskv and he President? 
il8j A - No. 
1191 MR. WISENBERG: 

BY MR. UDOLF: 
Now. are there any questions? 

1201 . 
[:iio 

0 I have a question. l’m not goin 
inion or ask for any condusions, but I wou kL?- 

to ask your 

-hR 
lrke to know, 

1231 r. Panetta. earlier you told us that Ms. Liebermann had 
124 jexpressed some concern about Monica Lewinsky% behavior, and 
[ 2 s 1 you described it as generally gawkii or hanging around. 
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Do you know what precipitated that partiilar 

i: i report to you was there one particular incident that she was 
[ 3 1 concerned about? 

[ :; 
A No. I don’t - I don’t know, you know, in 

articular what it was. I assume that Evelyn had seen her 
[ 6 1 here. or hanging around, and that it was based on that that P 
[ 7 1 she had ta$en ;; actpn. 
I81 
ts1 A But - - r 

Q 
specifically what that was, I don’t know., 

i if 1 before? Was that an unusual thi 
Had there been equ$ hangmg around or gawking 

i :: lanybod 
A 

‘g 

Well we definitely% to -~~u~;~u&~s;w 

[ 14 1 limit It. 
doing that ‘kind of thing we wou 
ut thrs was the one instance that I can recall. 

1151 Q He is the President of the United States, and it 
( 16 1 wouldn’t kA unui;.al for people to - 
1171 

- I don’t know if I would use the term gawk but 
be stare or want to be around the area that he was in:‘is 

f211 A Sure. I mean, I - you know,. there - there 
[ 2 2 1 were - obviously, there were people sornebmes that would be 
[ 23 1 taken throu h the White House that would atways want to catch 
124 ]a glimpse o the President. And. for that matter, even 3 
t2slemployees withrn the White House would sometimes when they 

LY. 

;ed 
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r;:wanted to et rid of them, that is fine with me. 

iii-thin 
a 
that 

So I guess the answer is ou would - if there was 

3, ! 
reapitated her concern o such a level that r 

14 ~she thoug t tha Monrca Lewinsky ought to be banned from the 
f 5 ! West Wing there was no need to - to communicate that 
tslparticular t;c&nn.to you? 

iii BY MR. WtSENBERG: 
t91 Q Given our - 

[lOI MR. WISEdBERG: 
FOREPERSON: 

Oh, I’m sorry. 
I have a quick question. Wtiin the 

~~:&mployees that work in the West Wing, along with interns, is 
I 13 j there a written dress code? 
114: THE WITNESS: There are - at the time that interns 
t 15:come it I believe they are briefed as to what they are 
116 jexpected to wear in - 
1173 FOREPERSON: Is it written? 

I:!il have 
THE WITNESS: - their positions. I believe 1 is. 

- I can’t tell you that I specificall 
t2ojbut I know that we raised the question x, 

have seen it, 
at we wanted to have 

KKr 
ple briefed properly on what they should wear in the White 
se at all times. And, again, Evelyn would enforce that 

t231code. 
I241 FOREPERSON: Okay. Would Evelyn ever brtr~ to you 
t25 I attention, rn your discussions about inappropriate dress - 

s 
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11 nuould she ever bring to our attentiin?hefact that some df 
t2jthe ladres skirts ma be 7 oo short or what type of - 
I31 THE Wl&ESS: Ye;. 
t41 FOREPERSON: - dress cede. 
I51 THE WITNESS: Yes. 
161 FOREPERSON: Dress being too short? 
171 THE WITNESS: 
is jwoukd usual1 

Yeah. If the dress was too short she ~~__ ._- _.._._ -..- 
tell them. 

FdREPERSON: Do you recall in your conversation 
t:z:with MS Liiberrnann if with MS Lewinsky that was ever an 
I 1 I I +e wkh - besides the 
[ 12 lwrth what was expected f? 

awking, was her dress code in tine 

rl3lWhite House? 
om employees in this area of the 

I141 THE WITNESS: I - I don’t remember it speci9calfy 
I I 5 I reiatina to. YOU know. to skirt. but aopearance was ane of 
i16jtheco?iceirisshe had. ” ~~ 
t171 FOREPERSON: 
I181 THE WITNESS: 

Do you recall - 
Her appearance. 

I191 FOREPERSON: Do you refallia&&way.her 
jzojappearance was not acceptable? 

THE WITNESS: I don’t remember. I don’t remember a 
i::;specific discussion about that. Except that 
tz3jjust didn’t like the way she looked, and she ,k 

ou know she 

[24]standing around. 
rdn’t like her 

[251 FOREPERSON: Thank you. 
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[ ? I BY MR. UDOLF- 
(11 Cl I have another question. I assume that srnce this 
[ 3 1 story has come out in the past week or so that you have had 
: 4 lseveral discussrons with your fnends and colleagues from the 
: 5 1 Washington area; is that a fair assumptron? About this 
(6 1 matter. 

A Not really that much I mean, I have - I have 
iii been barraged, as you can ima me by a lot of press calls 
island. frankly, I have not respon & to most of them. As to 

: ; o 1 people, you know, that are friends the discussions have been 
I 111 pretty Irmited. 
il2] I haven’t gone into thrs rssue at all. 

i ::;light peo 
Q Sometimes when things - things like this come to 

[15]this all a ong.” Or. P 
le are like1 to sa ‘Well yeah,, I knew about 

“rhean?abou-t t; rncrdent a lo? 
r161time ago, or this incident.” Has an one approache 

Y 

ou with 

[ 17 1 anything like that, or told you that t 
tiejcertain 

y were aware o 

r 19 {White 
- certain incidents that they had observed in the 

House? 
A No. 
Q That were related to this matter 

[221 A No. 

i::;that this 
FOREPERSON: By news reports - and I’m not saying 

is definite, but I just would like to ask you 
tzslsomething based on a possibility lt was said in the news 
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t1 lthat the First Lady.9 
(2 Iweekend. to call nen 

an manning the phones over the 
s and aamer support for the President 

t3jrn these 1 in this crisis. - . 
Did ou receive a phone call from the First Lad or 

i:ithe President z. 
[ 6 ] President durin 

rmsetf over the weekend, to help support t \: e 
this time of crisis? 

[71 THE %ITNESS: NO I did not. 
rs1 FOREPERSON: Thank you. 
191 BY MR. WISENBERG: 

I :i i Lewinsk 
0 If - I want to go back to my example of Ms. 

r121Chief of % 
Lets say that you had heard - you were still 

taff, after the incident with Evelyn Liebermann she 
I 131says she is going to transfer her - for the reasons you have 
I 14 J testified - 

K 
ou assume it is done. 

I151 re you with me so far? 
I161 A Yes. 
(171 Cl You then find out that on approximately tifteen 
[ 18 I occasions this individual has come at various times and been 
rls~allowed access to the West Wing area, including this 
I 20 1 Reception Area 1. 
1211 Are you with me so far? 
I221 A -Yes. 

i::;found 
Q If you found out - I think 

r 
ou said before you 

- if you found it out you would go o Evelyn 
rzsjLiebennann and say, What the t&r rs going on?” Correct? 

XMAIJW) 

Pardon me pst a morner,:. 

[3i U riven me - grven me urcumstances under w!~ch 
14 lshe was transferred out, do you find it stran 
: 5 I- if in fact the press reports are accura!e - 

e. odd, unusual 
w a! she was 

[ 6 ] admitted on about fifteen occasions to the West Wrng Oval 
17 1 Office general are? 
I31 A 
19 1 the Penta 

It IS unusual for an rndrvdual who is assigned to 
on at her level to have that much access. 

!I01 %J So the answer IS? 
1111 A Yes. 
il21 Q Yes? 
[I31 A Yes. 
I141 BY MR. BINHAK: 

Q Who would have had the authority to invite her in 
I :k? j after she had been at the Pentagon - to the West WIngo 

A Well I mean you know - the problem h&e is that, 
[:i;obviously. individuals can piovide a clearance for pea le 
[lglcpming into the White House, They just - you know. P hey 
rzolgtve their name and say, “Thts IS the reason,” that they 
r211should be admitted. And it is a little difficutt to. 
izz jobviousty. track the hundreds upon hundreds bf peo le who - 
I 2x1 and sometiies thousands of people who come into he White P 
124 iHouse on a particular day, or a articular week. 
I251 - So, it is - it is very d’ icult to oversee, you R 
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I161 Q All right. And you have testitied that you did not 
[ 17 1 invite her in after that? 
[lBl A Absolutelv not. 
ii9j Q And ou believe that it is not - 
[201 MR. WtSt!NBERG: Liebermann? 

Q Ms. Liibennann you certainty don’t think it was 
I:: i her, based on what she told you corns&? 
1231 A No. You better believe if 

r[::;who work In that area of 
Q So - andp have fdenbfred certain other people 

e building. There is Erskine 
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Ill A 
Q 

That is right. 

isito the President and demand an explanation - 
And if she said the President said so you would go 

I41 Aa That is right. 
151 - IS that correct? tf you found out that any 
I 6 1 employee. other than the President - you found out that any 
[ 7 jem lo ee had allowed Ms. Lewinsky in, without the knowledge 
I e jof t. Rb. e resrdent. any employee in these approximate1 
I 9 I mcidences in my example. would you be ticked at tha r 

tlojemployee? 
A Yes. I - I wouM be concerned if - if she was 

i :f ibeing admitted on a regular basis. no matter who was 
. [ 13 1 responsible. 

I141 Q Would it be fair to say that emplo ee who would do 
[ 15 I that without the knowledge and approval of the 8 
[i6lyou were Chief of Staff, would be gone? 

resident, if 

I:71 A Well, I think you woukt have to - you would have 
I 18 1 to determine, you know, what was involved here, and what the 
I 19 1 nature of th& reason was that was being presented. But if it 
1201was not a sufficient reason, and ifit was, you know, not 
[?I jclear as to. you know, whether there was a specific 
122 Iresponsibility for this person that they were rel 
I z 3 1 then that would be a very serious matter, you l! 

ing on, 
now, as to 

134 iwhat steps we would take. And it would be based on whatever 
12 5 1 information we got. 

t 1 I Bow&, or Harold Ickes, did eftiier afthose peopletett you 
t2 1 that they had invited Monica Lewinsky in? 
131 A I mean, I don’t know - what Period are we talkii 
I 4 I about. because - 
151 Q Aftershe- 
161 A - I ma 
[ 7 1 that period. So I don I 

well have left as Chief of Staff during 
know, you know, the particulars. 

I a I The - but Enkine Bowles would not have been there. It 
tslwoukl be probabl 

1101 MR. BlfiHAK: 
Evelyn that was there or Haroid lckes 

Oka . 
BY MR. WtSENBER& 

I have.00 further questions. 
1111 
iizj 0 Do 
t13jof authority to be a r; 

ou have to be at a faidy - at a certain level 

[ 14 jwith a pass? 
le to get somebody into the West Wing, 

1151 A 
[I 6 J 

P 

Yeah. Normal% it is - I Fan. tt would be a 
residential assistant that - w 0 works II) the West Wang. 

I 17 1 hat would allow 
1181 BY MF?%%?ome 13. 
t191 Q 

IZ;President. 
A 

Did Ms. Currie have t&au&o&y? 
Oh, certainly. She is - obviousty. works for the 

[221 BY MR. WlSENBERG: 
Q 

[::ifonns. three or four trmes have 
The question that I have tried to ask in various 

t2sjsource which, based on your ful Y 
ou heard an 
knowledge. ping from any as caused you to 
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Leon Panetta, 1128198 

I - I honestly am not aware of - I mean I - of 
i:i;someone coming to me, or even through rumor, sayin 
tz2 1 know, they suspect the President is having a relations i- 

that, you 

tzslwith someone else. 
IP 

I real1 do not recall receiving that kind of 
I::;information. or, or that matter, even rumor. r 
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MR. UDOLF: 
FOREPERSON: 
MR. WtSENBERG: 

THE WITNESS: I will. 
MR. WtSENBERG: 
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Ill 
[II 
I31 
141 
151 
[61 
I’1 
181 
I91 

1101 
[Ill 
1121 
II31 
L141 
I151 
iI61 
11’1 
I181 
[I91 
I201 
I211 
I221 
(231 
I241 
(251 
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